
May 27, 2020

BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING

www.algomapublichealth.com



11. . Call to OrderCall to Order

22. . Adoption of AgendaAdoption of Agenda

33. . Adoption of MinutesAdoption of Minutes

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer
Report

b. Finance and Audit

i. Report of MOH CEO - May 2020

i. Financial Statements for the period ending March
31, 2020

c. Governance

d. Governance Meeting Chair Report - May 2020

e. 02-05-088 - Stakeholder Communication

f. 02-05-001 - Board of Directors

g. 02-05-010 - Board Minutes - Posting - Circulation

66. . Reports to BoardReports to Board

a. Letter to the Minister of Health from Peterborough
Public Health regarding Provincial Leadership in the
Monitoring of Food Affordability and Food Insecurity
dated April 30, 2020.

b. Letter to the Minister of Children, Communicty and

88. . CorrespondenceCorrespondence

a. Declaration of Conflict of Interest

a. May 27, 2020 Board of Health Agenda

a. April 22, 2020 Board of Health Meeting Minutes

44. . Delegation/PresentationsDelegation/Presentations

55. . Business ArisingBusiness Arising

h. 02-05-030 - Board Member Code of Conduct

77. . New BusinessNew Business

Meeting Book - May 27, 2020 Board of Health MeetingMeeting Book - May 27, 2020 Board of Health Meeting

Algoma Public Health Board of Health Meeting Table of ContentsAlgoma Public Health Board of Health Meeting Table of Contents

Page 4

Page 7

Page 11

Page 15

Page 23

Page 24

Page 26

Page 30

Page 31

Page 33

Page 35

Page 2 of 52



Community and Social Services regarding
Consultation for a new Ontario Poverty Reduction
Strategy, dated April 30, 2020.

c. Letter to the Chief Medical Officer of Health from the
Corporation of the Township of St. Joseph regarding
Transparency of Algoma Public Health dated May 1,
2020

99. . Items for InformationItems for Information

1414. . AnnouncementsAnnouncements

d. Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, Deputy Prime
Minister, Minister of Finance regarding Basic Income
for Income Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and
Beyond, dated May 20, 2020.

a. alPHa Information Break

1010. . AddendumAddendum

1111. . In-CameraIn-Camera

1212. . Open MeetingOpen Meeting

1313. . Resolutions Resulting From In CommitteesResolutions Resulting From In Committees

a. Next Board of Health Meeting

1515. . AdjournmentAdjournment

Page 42

Page 45

Page 49

Page 3 of 52



ENT : BOARD MEMBERS APH EXECUTIVE
Lee Mason - BOH Chair Dr. Marlene Spruyt - Medical Officer of Health/CEO
Ed Pearce - F&AC Chair Dr. Jennifer Loo - AMOH & Director of Health Protection
Deborah Graystone - Gov. Chair Justin Pino - CFO /Director of Operations

Antoniette Tomie - Director of Human Resources
Louise Caicco Tett Laurie Zeppa - Director of Health Promotion & Prevention
Sally Hagman Tania Caputo - Board Secretary
Micheline Hatfield
Adrienne Kappes
Dr. Heather O'Brien
Brent Rankin
Karen Raybould
Matthew Scott

1.0 Meeting Called to Order L. Mason
a. 

2.0 Adoption of Agenda L. Mason
Moved:

Seconded:

3.0 Delegations / Presentations M. Spruyt

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting L. Mason

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes L. Mason

6.0 Reports to the Board
a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports M. Spruyt

i. 
Moved: E. Pearce

Seconded: A. Kappes

* Meeting held during the provincially declared emergency

Board of Health Meeting 
AGENDA

May 27, 2020 at 5:00 pm
Webex Audio and Videoconference │   Algoma Community Room

Dr. Patricia Avery 

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health agenda dated May 27, 2020 be approved as presented.

RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health minutes dated April 22, 2020 be approved as presented.

MOH Report, May 2020

RESOLUTION

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for May 2020 be adopted as 
presented.

Page 4 of 52



b. Finance and Audit 
i. J. Pino

Moved:
Seconded:

c. Governance
i. D. Graystone

Moved:
Seconded:

ii.

iii. 02-05-001 Board of Directors

iv. 02-05-010 Board Minute posting

v. 02-05-030 Board Member Code of Conduct

Moved:
Seconded:

7.0 New Business/General Business L. Mason

8.0 Correspondence L. Mason
a.

b.

c.

Financial Statements

RESOLUTION

THAT the unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending March 31, 2020 be approved 
as presented.

02-05-088 Stakeholder Communication

THAT the Governance Committee has reviewed and approves 02-05-001 Board of Directors as 
presented, and;

THAT the Governance Committee has reviewed and approves 02-05-030 Board Member Code 
of Conduct as presented.

THAT the Governance Committee has reviewed and approves 02-05-088 Stakeholder 
Communication as presented, and;

THAT the Governance Committee has reviewed and approves 02-05-010 Board Minute 
Posting as presented, and;

RESOLUTION

THAT the Governance Committee Chair report for the month of May 2020 be accepted as 
presented.

Letter to the Minister of Health from Peterborough Public Health regarding Provincial 
Leadership in the Monitoring of Food Affordability and Food Insecurity dated April 30, 
2020.

Letter to the Minister of Children, Communicty and Community and Social Services from 
Timiskuming Health Unit regarding Consultation for a new Ontario Poverty Reduction 
Strategy, dated April 30, 2020.

Governance Committee Chair Report

RESOLUTION

Letter to the Chief Medical Officer of Health from The Corporation of the Township of St. 
Joseph regarding Transparency of Algoma Public Health dated May 1, 2020.  A letter 
with the same content was also received from the Municipality of Blind River.

Page 5 of 52



d.

9.0 Items for Information L. Mason
a.

10.0 L. Mason

11.0 L. Mason

12.0 L. Mason
Resolutions resulting from in-camera meeting.

13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings: L. Mason

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting
June 10, 2020 @ 5:00 pm
Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Governance Committee Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Board of Health Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

14.0 Evaluation L. Mason

15.0 Adjournment L. Mason
Moved: P. Avery

THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

June 24, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

Open Meeting - 7:03 pm

June 17, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

RESOLUTION

alPHa - Association of Local Public Health Agencies - Information Break

Addendum

In-Camera 
For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable 
individuals, adoption of in camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or 
potential litigation.

Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, Deputy Prime Minister, Minister of Finance from 
Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit regarding Basic Income for Income Security during 
Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond, dated May 20, 2020.

Page 6 of 52



BOARD MEMBERS APH EXECUTIVE
PRESENT : Dr. Marlene Spruyt - Medical Officer of Health/CEO

Tania Caputo - Board Secretary
Lee Mason Justin Pino - CFO /Director of Operations
Ed Pearce Antoniette Tomie - Director of Human Resources
Deborah Graystone Laurie Zeppa - Director of Health Promotion & Prevention

Dr. Jennifer Loo - AMOH & Director of Health Protection
Louise Caicco Tett
Sally Hagman
Adrienne Kappes
Dr. Heather O'Brien
Brent Rankin
Karen Raybould
Matthew Scott

REGRETS :

1.0 Meeting Called to Order 
a. 

None declared

2.0 Adoption of Agenda
Moved: E. Pearce

Seconded: B. Rankin

3.0 Delegations / Presentations
Not applicable

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting 
Moved: S. Hagman

Seconded: K. Raybould

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes
Not applicable

6.0 Reports to the Board
a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports

i. 

* Meeting held during the provincially declared emergency

Micheline Hatfield

Audio and Video 
Conference:

CARRIED

CARRIED

Board of Health Meeting 
MINUTES

April 22, 2020 at 5:00 pm
Webex Audio and Videoconference │   Algoma Community Room

Dr. Patricia Avery 

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

RESOLUTION
2020-29

THAT the Board of Health agenda dated April 22, 2020 be approved as presented.

RESOLUTION
2020-30

THAT the Board of Health minutes dated March 25, 2020 be approved as presented.

MOH Report, April 2020

Page 7 of 52



Moved: A. Kappes
Seconded: B. Rankin

b. Finance and Audit 
i.

E. Pearce provided the Chair Report for the Finance Committee included in the agenda package.
Moved: E. Pearce

Seconded: P. Avery

CARRIED

ii.

Moved: E. Pearce
Seconded: P. Avery

7.0 New Business/General Business
a.

8.0 Correspondence
a.

b.

c.

d.

CARRIED

THAT the unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending February 29, 2020 be approved as 
presented.

RESOLUTION
2020-32

THAT the Finance and Audit Committee Chair report for the month of April 2020 be accepted as presented.

Financial Statements

RESOLUTION
2020-33

Finance and Audit Committee Chair Report

RESOLUTION
2020-31

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for April 2020 be adopted as amended.
CARRIED

THAT the draft audited Financial Statements and for the period ending December 31, 2019 be approved as 
presented and;

Municipal request to Board Chair

Letter of update from alPHa to all members regarding their role in public health during COVID-19, dated 
March 24, 2020.
Letter to Municipal Councils from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing regarding Enforcement 
of Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act orders dated March 27, 2020.
Letter to the Premier of Ontario from alPHa regarding COVID-19 Action Plan and Public Health, dated 
March 27, 2020.
Letter to the Director, Legalization of Cannabis Branch from Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit 
regarding 20-MAG001, Cannabis Consumption Establishments / Special Occasion Permits dated March 
30, 2020.

The report of the Medical officer of Health was provided by M. Spruyt with questions and discussion about 
availability of PPE, COVID-19 test reporting, availability of tests, and the time it takes for results. Positive test 
results in Algoma are low in relation to other regions in Ontario. The per capita number of tests done in 
Algoma is at the same ratio as the rest of the province.  Even with the low numbers of positive cases the 
public is being advised to stay the course with physical distancing.  

J. Pino presented the financial statements providing commentary on each portion of the statement. It 
was noted that in the coming year there will be an impact due to the COVID-19 pandemic. A question 
was asked about the newly renovated Algoma Community room and issues with the installed 
microphones.  Assurance was made that the vendor is involved in finding a solution to improve the 
sound quality.

L. Mason presented the letter from the Township of Johnson requesting a deferral of their levy 
payment until a time when the fiscal picture is more clear.  Through discusssion J. Pino explained the 
quarterly schedule of payments, pointing out the flexibility already in place. L. Mason will reply to letter 
and follow-up with Township as needed.

Page 8 of 52



e.

f.

9.0 Items for Information 
a.

b.

10.0

11.0

Moved: P. Avery
Seconded: A. Kappes

12.0 Open Meeting 7:10 pm

Moved: D. Graystone
Seconded: K. Raybould

CARRIED

13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings:

Governance Committee Meeting
Date of Special Meeting in May to be determined 

Board of Health Meeting:
May 27, 2020 @ 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room 

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting
June 10, 2020 @ 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room 

In relation to an in-camera agenda item about the report of positive cases of COVID-19 in Algoma, Board 
members E. Pearce and S. Hagman sought for the item to be discussed in open meeting.

CARRIED

Resolutions resulting from in-camera meeting:

a. Communication with Municipalities

Meeting Guidance for Heads of Council provided by The Association of Municipalities of Ontario dated 
March 22, 2020.
Council's Role in Communicating COVID-19 provided by The Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
dated March 22, 2020.

Two addendums were addresed in Item 6.a. and 7.

RESOLUTION
2020-35

THAT the Board of Health go in-camera.

THAT the APH Board of Health directs the Governance Committee to hold a special meeting for the review 
and development of a strategy for timely communication appropriate to Algoma Public Health and involved 
municipalities to be presented at the May 2020 Board of Health Meeting. 

In-Camera 5:57 pm
For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable individuals, 
adoption of in camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or potential litigation.

RESOLUTION
2020-34

THAT the Board of Health go in-camera.

Letter to Municipal Councils from the Ministry of Municial Affairs and Housing regarding Operation of 
Seasonal Trailer Parks and Recreational Campgrounds dated April 3, 2020.
Letter to Senior Managers, SFOA Programs from the Office of the Chief Medical Officer of Health 
regarding proposed regulatory amendments under the Smoke-Free Ontario Act, 2017, dated April 6, 
2020.

Addendum

Page 9 of 52



Governance Committee Meeting

SSM Algoma Community Room 

14.0 Evaluation
L. Mason reminded the board to complete the meeting evaluation when it is posted.

15.0 Adjournment - 7:19 pm
Moved: B. Rankin

Seconded: P. Avery
THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

Tania Caputo, Secretary

Date

Lee Mason, Chair

Date

CARRIED

June 17, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

RESOLUTION
2020-36

Page 10 of 52



 
 
  

  

May 2020 

Prepared by:   
Dr. Marlene Spruyt and the  
Leadership Team 
 
Presented to:  
Algoma Public Health Board of Health  
27/05/2020 

Safety First in the lobby of APH in SSM – showing several of 
the protective measures in place. 

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

Page 11 of 52



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
May 27, 2020 
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

1 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Program Highlights Pages 3-10 Program Highlights Pages  5 - 11 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

APH At-a-Glance Page   2 

Partnerships & Program Highlights Page   3 

Page 12 of 52



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
May 27, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

2 

 
APH work continues in a Pandemic 
 
Most of our buildings are empty as employees remain working from home and we 
continue to provide only essential services face to face. Although there continue to be 
some technical glitches our IT team has done an amazing job supporting this transition 
and in particular meeting the unique needs of different teams and programs.  
 
COVID-19 continues to be our priority work. Our caseload remains manageable and we 
are able to meet the provincial target of reaching all positive cases and their contacts 
within 24 hours. Additional contact tracers have been training and we have some 
additional capacity to ramp up as the number of cases increases. 
 
There was considerable energy directed to the surveillance swab project when the 
Ministry requested us to swab ALL residents and staff of Long Term Care Homes in the 
district. Across Algoma only 3 asymptomatic positive cases were identified. We do not 
actually have a good scientific understanding of what a positive test means from a 
clinical sense. It identifies that the individual had the presence of virus particles in their 
upper airway when the swab was taken.  Without more detailed testing (not available) 
we do not know whether these are viable/active virus particles and whether that 
asymptomatic person is actually infective and capable of spreading the disease. They 
could be a true asymptomatic case; or a person about to have symptoms or a person 
recovering from a mild illness. We are obligated to enact Outbreak operations whenever 
a positive case is covered and consequently creates additional work and stress for the 
residents and staff. 
 
As the Province begins to move towards re-opening our employer support phone lines 
have had increased inquiries. Every minor change in a guideline or a regulation results in 
a great number of requests for us to interpret how those changes impact their 
operations. 
 
Our Communications Team has continued to be busy. As mentioned above 
communicating new information and reinforcing existing restrictions to the public and 
presenting that in a way that continues to engage the public is an ongoing challenge. 
 
 
 

APH AT-A-GLANCE 

Page 13 of 52



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
May 27, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

3 

 

PARTNERSHIPS 
 
Many members of the Algoma Leadership Table (ALT) provide services to vulnerable 
populations. There has been a concern that the community may not be accessing 
services and may not be aware that many of these services are still available despite 
the provincial “lockdown”. This may lead to worsening mental health and increasing 
exposure to domestic violence.  APH Communications team has supported the 
development and co-ordination of social media messaging for any members of the 
ALT. 
 
 

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 

 
Priority services have continued, including needle exchange, naloxone distribution, low-
cost contraceptive sales and some immunization services. Our non-public health 
programs have continued to provide services to clients using virtual modalities as much 
as possible. 
 
As working in a Pandemic appears to be progressing to a new normal we are beginning 
to plan for resumption of additional services and explore how we would implement 
physical distancing and minimal contact concepts into our regular operations. In 
particular we will focus on how we will deliver the Universal Influenza Immunization 
Program (UIIP) and school-based immunizations this fall. 

 

Page 14 of 52



Algoma Public Health
(Unaudited) Financial Statements

Index Page
  Statement of Operations 1
  Statement of Revenues 2
  Statement of Expenses - Public Health 3

  Notes to the Financial Statements 4-6

  Statement of Financial Position 7

March 31, 2020

Page 15 of 52



Explanations will be provided for variances of 15% and $15,000 occurring in the first 6 months

and variances of 10% and $10,000 occurring in the final 6 months

Page 1 Printed 5/20/2020 at 11:19 AM03 March Board Statements 20

Algoma Public Health
Statement of Operations 
March 2020
(Unaudited)

Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt. YTD Budget
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

Public Health Programs
Revenue
Municipal Levy - Public Health 947,125$            947,124$          0$                   3,788,497$     0% 100%
Provincial Grants - Cost Shared Funding 2,436,475 2,167,139         269,336          8,668,558       12% 112%
Provincial Grants - Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 349,106 374,446            (25,340)           1,497,786       -7% 93%
Provincial Grants - Mitigation Funding 0 202,134 (202,134)         808,535          -100% 0%
Fees, other grants and recovery of expenditures 93,693 140,579            (46,885)           620,814          -33% 67%
Total Public Health Revenue 3,826,399$         3,831,422$       (5,023)$           15,384,190$   0% 100%

Expenditures
Public Health Cost Shared 3,450,010$         3,520,778$       70,768$          13,886,405$   -2% 98%
Public Health 100% Prov. Funded Programs 301,745 398,210 96,464            1,497,786       -24% 76%
Total Public Health Programs Expenditures 3,751,755$         3,918,987$       167,232$        15,384,190$   -4% 96%

Total Rev. over Exp. Public Health 74,644$              (87,565)$           162,209$        0$                   

Healthy Babies Healthy Children
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 1,068,011$         1,068,011         -                  1,068,011       0% 100%
Expenditures 1,068,011           1,068,011         0                     1,068,011       0% 100%
Excess of Rev. over Exp. (0)                        (0)                      (0)                    (0)                    

Public Health Programs - Fiscal 19/20
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 81,299$              214,500            133,201          214,500          
Expenditures 75,620                214,500            (138,880)         214,500          
Excess of Rev. over Fiscal Funded 5,679                  -                    5,679              -                  

Community Health Programs (Non Public Health)
Calendar Programs
Revenue
Provincial Grants - Community Health -$                    -$                  -$                -$                
Municipal, Federal, and Other Funding 79,724 79,061 663                 316,244 1% 101%
Total Community Health Revenue 79,724$              79,061$            663$               316,244$        1% 101%

Expenditures
Child Benefits Ontario Works 5,554 6,125                571                 24,500            -9% 91%
Algoma CADAP programs 72,427 72,936              509                 291,744          -1% 99%
Total Calendar Community Health Programs 77,980$              79,061$            1,081$            316,244$        -1% 99%

Total Rev. over Exp. Calendar Community Health 1,744$                (0)$                    1,744$            0$                   

Fiscal Programs
Revenue
Provincial Grants - Community Health 5,765,760$         5,765,680$       80$                 5,765,680$     0% 100%
Municipal, Federal, and Other Funding 261,637 261,637 -                  261,637 0% 100%
Other Bill for Service Programs 56,111 56,111            
Total Community Health Revenue 6,083,508$         6,027,317$       56,191$          6,027,317$     1% 101%

Expenditures
Brighter Futures for Children 122,537 122,537            -                  122,537          0% 100%
Infant Development 609,327 644,031            34,704            644,031          -5% 95%
Preschool Speech and Languages 640,256 640,256            -                  640,256          0% 100%
Nurse Practitioner 153,756 153,752            (4)                    153,752          0% 100%
Genetics Counseling 0 -                    -                  -                  0% 0%
Community Mental Health 3,586,279 3,649,931         63,652            3,649,931       -2% 98%
Community Alcohol and Drug Assessment 720,918 737,898            16,980            737,898          -2% 98%
Stay on Your Feet 100,000 100,000            -                  100,000          0% 100%
Bill for Service Programs 45,034 -                    (45,034)           -                  
Misc Fiscal 139                     4,600                4,461              4,600              -97% 3%
Total Fiscal Community Health Programs 5,978,246$         6,053,005$       74,759$          6,053,005$     -1% 99%

Total Rev. over Exp. Fiscal Community Health 105,262$            (25,688)$           130,950$        (25,688)$         

 

Page 16 of 52



Explanations will be provided for variances of 15% and $15,000 occurring in the first 6 months
and variances of 10% and $10,000 occurring in the final 6 months Page 2

Algoma Public Health
Revenue Statement
For Three Months Ending March 31, 2020 Comparison Prior Year:
(Unaudited) Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/

YTD YTD Bgt. to Act. Budget Act. to Bgt. Annual Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019

Levies Sault Ste Marie 667,344 667,344 0 2,669,377 0% 25% 609,525 609,525 0
Levies Vector Bourne Disease and Safe Water 14,858 14,858 0
Levies District 279,780 279,780 0 1,119,120 0% 25% 292,662 255,539 37,123
Total Levies 947,125 947,124 0 3,788,497 0% 25% 917,045 879,922 37,123

MOH Public Health Funding 1,836,225 1,566,890 269,335 6,946,279 17% 26% 1,836,225 1,836,225 0
MOH Funding Needle Exchange 16,175 16,175 (0) 45,290 0% 36% 16,175 16,175 (0)
MOH Funding Haines Food Safety 6,150 6,150 0 17,220 0% 36% 6,150 6,150 0
MOH Funding Healthy Smiles 192,475 192,475 0 538,930 0% 36% 192,475 192,475 0
MOH Funding - Social Determinants of Health 45,125 45,120 5 126,350 0% 36% 45,125 45,125 0
MOH Funding Chief Nursing Officer 30,375 30,378 (3) 85,050 0% 36% 30,375 30,375 0
MOH Enhanced Funding Safe Water 3,875 3,875 (0) 10,850 0% 36% 3,875 3,875 0
MOH Funding Infection Control 78,100 78,102 (2) 218,680 0% 36% 78,100 78,100 0
MOH Funding Diabetes 37,500 37,500 0 105,000 0% 36% 37,500 37,500 0
Funding Ontario Tobacco Strategy 108,400 108,400 0 303,520 0% 36% 108,400 108,400 0
MOH Funding Harm Reduction 37,500 37,500 0 105,000 0% 36% 37,500 37,500 0
MOH Funding Vector Borne Disease 27,175 27,174 1 101,448 0% 27% 27,175 27,175 0
MOH Funding Small Drinking Water Systems 17,400 17,400 0 64,960 0% 27% 17,400 17,400 0
Total Public Health Cost Shared Funding 2,436,475 2,167,139 269,336 8,668,577 12% 28% 2,436,475 2,436,475 0

MOH Funding - MOH / AMOH Top Up 39,061 38,021 1,040 152,086 3% 26% 31,180 31,613 (433)
MOH Funding Northern Ontario Fruits & Veg. 29,350 29,350 0 117,400 0% 25% 29,350 29,350 0
MOH Funding Unorganized 132,600 132,600 0 530,400 0% 25% 132,600 132,600 0
MOH Senior Dental 148,095 174,475 (26,380) 697,900 -15% 21% 0 0 0
One Time Funding 0 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0
Total Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 349,106 374,446 (25,340) 1,497,786 -7% 23% 193,130 193,563 (433)

Total Public Health Mitigation Funding 0 202,134 (202,134) 808,535 -100% 0% 0 0 0

Recoveries from Programs 2,510 6,883 (4,372) 27,511 -64% 9% 2,515 20,075 (17,560)
Program Fees 46,656 50,321 (3,665) 201,284 -7% 23% 54,367 59,648 (5,281)
Land Control Fees 7,261 15,000 (7,739) 160,000 -52% 5% 4,890 27,500 (22,610)
Program Fees Immunization 27,991 28,750 (759) 115,000 -3% 24% 24,002 38,750 (14,748)
HPV Vaccine Program 0 3,000 (3,000) 12,500 0% 0% 0 4,000 (4,000)
Influenza Program 0 1,500 (1,500) 25,000 0% 0% 0 0 0
Meningococcal C Program 0 625 (625) 7,500 0% 0% 0 0 0
Interest Revenue 10,645 10,000 645 40,000 6% 27% 11,146 8,000 3,146
Other Revenues (1,370) 24,500 (25,870) 32,000 0% -4% 1,500 9,250 (7,750)
Total Fees, Other Grants and Recoveries 93,693 140,579 (46,885) 620,795 -33% 15% 98,421 167,224 (68,803)

Total Public Health Revenue Annual 3,826,399$     3,831,423$     ( 5,023 )$         15,384,190$   0% 25% 3,645,071$    3,677,184$    ( 32,113 )$       

Variance  2019

Page 17 of 52



Explanations will be provided for variances of 15% and $15,000 occurring in the first 6 months
and variances of 10% and $10,000 occurring in the final 6 months Page 3

Algoma Public Health
Expense Statement- Public Health
For Three Months Ending March 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

Comparison Prior Year:
Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt.  Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019

Salaries & Wages 2,247,783$       2,354,333$       106,550$        9,391,091$       -5% 24% 2,067,863$         2,257,855$       189,992$      
Benefits 612,058 572,821 ( 39,238 )         2,286,778 7% 27% 543,742 546,272 2,530
Travel 36,331 47,750 11,419            199,676 -24% 18% 41,361 47,767 6,406
Program 178,826 193,203 14,377            669,660 -7% 27% 80,645 157,858 77,214
Office 17,063 16,925 ( 138 )              67,700 1% 25% 18,851 25,886 7,035
Computer Services 169,890 187,168 17,277            853,146 -9% 20% 191,938 238,486 46,548
Telecommunications 37,851 57,906 20,055            279,612 -35% 14% 80,715 96,921 16,206
Program Promotion 3,614 23,293 19,679            94,173 -84% 4% 4,873 15,732 10,859
Professional Development 5,565 33,875 28,310            135,500 -84% 4% 21,258 24,176 2,918
Facilities Expenses 185,721 193,604 7,883              774,417 -4% 24% 189,420 190,000 580
Fees & Insurance  175,942 143,470 ( 32,472 )         253,880 23% 69% 132,155 133,020 865
Debt Management 115,225 115,225 0                     460,900 0% 25% 115,225 115,225 0
Recoveries (34,113) (20,586) 13,527            (82,343) 66% 41% (26,909) (26,182) 727

3,751,756$    3,918,987$    167,231$     15,384,190$  -4% 24% 3,461,136$      3,823,016$    361,880$    

Variance  
2019

Page 18 of 52



4 
 

Notes to Financial Statements – March 2020 
Reporting Period 
 
The March 2020 financial reports include three-months of financial results for Public Health and the 
following calendar programs: Child Benefits Ontario Works, and Algoma CADAP programs.  All other 
programs are reporting twelve-month result from operations year ended March 31 2020.  
 
 
Statement of Operations (see page 1) 
 
Summary – Public Health and Non Public Health Programs 
 
As of March 31 2020, Public Health programs are reporting a $162k positive variance.   
 
Public Health Revenues are indicating a $5k negative variance.  100% Provincially Funded Seniors 
Dental program funding was received in the month of March resulting in a reduction of the negative 
variance associated with 100% Provincial funded programs relative to February.  Additionally, the 
provincial government had indicated that they would be providing one-time mitigation funding in 2020 to 
assist all public health units and municipalities in managing funding formula changes. As of March 31 
2020 Mitigation Funding associated with changes to the cost-sharing formula have not flowed to health 
units. The negative variance associated with mitigation funding is being offset with the positive variance 
associated with cost-shared Provincial Grants being greater than budgeted. Management has reached out 
to the Ministry regarding timing of this flow of funding however dates are unknown at this time.      
 
There is a positive variance of $167k related to Total Public Health expenses being less than budgeted.  
Salary and Wages expense is driving this positive variance.     
 
APH’s Community Health (Non-Public Health) Fiscal Programs are twelve-months into the fiscal year. 
Expenses associated with Non-Public Health programs were relatively aligned with budget for the fiscal 
year.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19 of 52



Notes Continued… 

5 
 

 
Public Health Revenue (see page 2)  
 
Overall, Public Health funding revenues are within budget.     
 
The municipal levies are within budget.   
 
Provincial Cost-Shared funding is reflecting a $269k positive variance.  Because of the Ministry 
announcement to change the cost-sharing funding formula from 75% provincial funding to 70% 
provincial funding, management budgeted accordingly.  As of March 31 2020, Provincial Cost-Shared 
funding is flowing similar to 2019 ratios.  
 
Offsetting the positive variance noted with Cost-Shared Funding is the negative variances associated with 
100% Provincially Funded programs, Public Health Provincial mitigation funding, and Fees Other Grants 
and Recoveries. 
 
100% Provincially Funded programs are showing a negative $25k variance. Seniors Dental revenues 
started flowing in the month of March.  The negative $26k variance associated with the Ontario Seniors 
Dental revenue is related to timing of receipts associated with the program.   
 
Public Health Mitigation funding has yet-to-flow with regards changes to the cost-sharing formula. The 
negative variance associated with mitigation funding is being offset with the positive variance associated 
with Provincial Cost-Shared Funding.   
 
Fees, Other Grants & Recoveries are showing a negative variance of $47k.  This is a result of timing of 
receipts of Fees, Other Grants & Recoveries.  APH typically captures the bulk of its fees between the 
spring and fall months.   
 
   
Public Health Expenses (see page 3) 
 
Salary & Wages 
There is a $107k positive variance associated with Salary and Wages.  $58k of this is associated to 
Healthy Smiles and Sr. Dental programs.  The remaining balance is for other unpaid leaves and staff 
gapping of maternity leaves. 
 
Travel 
There is an $11k positive variance associated with Travel expenses.  This is a result of APH employees 
working virtually as opposed to travelling within the District of Algoma.  Management is anticipating 
Travel expenses to be less than budgeted for 2020 as a result of the impact of COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Telecommunications 
Telecommunications expense is showing a positive variance of $20k.  This is a result of timing of 
expenses not-yet incurred.  
 
 
 
 

Page 20 of 52



Notes Continued… 

6 
 

 
Program Promotion 
 
Program Promotion expense is indicating a positive $20k variance.  This is a result of timing of expenses 
not-yet-incurred.   
 
Professional Development 
There is a $28k positive variance associated with Professional Development.  This is a result of APH 
employees participating in less Professional Development opportunities to-date.  Specially, the Ontario 
Public Health Convention (TOPHC), one of the major provincial Public Health conferences, which some 
APH staff typically attend, was cancelled in March as a result of COVID-19 pandemic.    
 
 
Fees and Insurance 
Fees and Insurance is showing a negative $32k variance.  Insurance expense is $21k over budget due to 
unanticipated increases in insurance premiums not budgeted.  Additionally legal fees are currently $9k 
over budget.  
 
 
Financial Position - Balance Sheet (see page 7) 
 
APH’s liquidity position continues to be stable and the bank has been reconciled as of March 31 2020.  
Cash includes $1.15M in short-term investments.    
 
Long-term debt of $4.68 million is held by TD Bank @ 1.95% for a 60-month term (amortization period 
of 180 months) and matures on September 1, 2021.  $274k of the loan relates to the financing of the Elliot 
Lake office renovations which occurred in 2015 with the balance related to the financing of the 294 
Willow Avenue facility located in Sault Ste. Marie.   
 
There are no material accounts receivable collection concerns.  
 
 
NOTE: 
 

1. Management is tracking COVID-19 associated costs.  Costs will be reported in the time-period in which they are 
incurred.   

 

Page 21 of 52



Page 7 03 March Board Statements 20

(Unaudited)
March December
2020 2019

Assets

Current
Cash & Investments $ 3,247,958        $ 3,456,984           
Accounts Receivable 190,394 433,414              
Receivable from Municipalities 140,455           74,976                
Receivable from Province of Ontario

Subtotal Current Assets 3,578,806        3,965,374           

Financial Liabilities:
   Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities 1,433,406 1,579,444
   Payable to Gov't of Ont/Municipalities 78,259 514,362
   Deferred Revenue 297,037 281,252
   Employee  Future Benefit Obligations 2,910,195 2,910,195
   Term Loan 4,836,784 4,836,784

Subtotal Current Liabilities 9,555,681 10,122,037         

Net Debt (5,976,874) (6,156,664)

Non-Financial Assets:
   Building 22,867,230 22,867,230
   Furniture & Fixtures 1,998,117 1,998,117
   Leasehold Improvements 1,572,807 1,572,807
   IT 3,252,107 3,252,107
   Automobile 40,113 40,113
   Accumulated Depreciation (10,429,282) (10,429,282)

Subtotal Non-Financial Assets 19,301,092 19,301,092

Accumulated Surplus 13,324,217 13,144,428

Algoma Public Health
Statement of Financial Position

Date:  As of March 2020

Page 22 of 52



 
Governance Meeting 
May 6 and 13, 2020 

 
The Committee had a lengthy discussion regarding a communication strategy for Algoma Public 
Health and a communication strategy for municipalities.  A consensus was made to have Lee 
and Karen develop a draft board policy for support of the APHU in their communication 
regarding public health issues comprehensively not specifically related to epidemics or 
pandemic. The intention of the policy is to follow best practice guidelines while adhering to our 
principle of transparency and building trusting relationship with all municipalities 
 
We also reviewed and approved with amendments: 
Policy 02-05-001 Composition and Accountability of the Board of Directors 
Policy 02-050-010 Board Minutes/Packages-Posting/Circulation/Retention 
Policy 02-05-030 Board Member Code of Conduct 
 
Outstanding policies requiring more time and input have been deferred to our June Governance 
meeting. 
 
Next Governance Meeting was scheduled for May 13 at 5 p.m. 
 
At our May 13 Governance Meeting:  the details of the policy were discussed and amendments 
were made to ensure compliance with all relevant legislation and guidelines. 

 
 
 

Page 23 of 52



PAGE: 1 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-088 
 
 

 
Algoma Public Health – Policy and Procedure Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-088 
    
DATE:                      Original: May 13, 2020 SECTION: Policies 
    
  SUBJECT: Stakeholder Communication 
    

PURPOSE: 

 
Effective communication with all stakeholders is a key foundational activity of Algoma Public 
Health. 
 
The Board of Health supports the staff of APH to share information with its stakeholders that 
complies with the Personal Health Information Protection Act, Municipal Freedom of Information 
and Protection of Privacy Act, Health Protection and Promotion Act, Accessibility for Ontarians 
with Disabilities Act, French Language Services Act, and Emergency Management and Civil 
Protection Act. APH will also follow directives from the Ministry of Health and best practices 
identified by organizations such as Public Health Ontario, Public Health Agency of Canada and 
the World Health Organization. 
 
The Board recognizes APH’s duty to communicate accurate, honest, meaningful, and 
understandable information (or expert advice in the absence of sufficient evidence) in a timely 
manner to stakeholders, through various means, with the aim to protect the individuals and the 
public supported by APH while protecting the privacy of individuals.  
 
The Board also recognizes that effective and ongoing communication by APH during public health 
emergencies is critical in order to be transparent and accountable and to foster trust in the health 
unit by stakeholders to optimize the success of public health interventions. 
 
POLICY: 
 
1) The Board of Health is accountable to ensure that a communication plan is developed and 

regularly reviewed for various scenarios related to interactions with municipalities and 
stakeholders or that can impact public health (e.g., environmental and human disasters, 
infectious disease outbreaks, etc.). Communication will be designed to meet the needs of 
stakeholders and will be made available in French when required. Communication will align 
with these principles: 
 
a) Communication will occur with all appropriate stakeholder(s) should a public health related 

threat or event occur;  
 

b) Information communicated will comply with freedom of information and privacy legislation 
and established best practices as determined by APH based on relevant sources to protect 
the health of residents served by APH; 

 
c) Individuals with the authority to share information with stakeholders and the media are 

identified; 

Page 24 of 52



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-088 
 

 
d) Information is shared with the appropriate stakeholders and the public in a timely manner 

with the appropriate sequence of the release of information (i.e., individual stakeholders are 
informed prior to public posting and sharing with the media);  
 

e) APH will, to the best of their ability, communicate information or expert advice that is 
accurate, honest, meaningful, and understandable and will communicate as frequently as 
required and reasonable; 
 

f) Communication with municipal councils will occur after every municipal election cycle to 
ensure the orientation of newly elected council members on APH’s role; and 
 

g) Communication with municipal councils will occur after the yearly budget has been 
established for APH; a meeting may be scheduled with the council if requested.  

 
 

Page 25 of 52



PAGE: 1 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-001 
 

Algoma Public Health – Policy and Procedure Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 

APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE: 02-05-001 
    
DATE: Original: May 4, 1995 SECTION: Policies 

 

Revised: May 25, 2016 
Revised: Apr 25, 2018 
Reviewed: Nov 20, 2019 
Revised: May 27, 2020 
 

 
SUBJECT: Composition and Accountability 

of the Board of Directors 
    

KNOWLEDGE: 

The Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit is the governing body of Algoma Public Health 
and is established by the provincial public health legislation, the Health Protection and Promotion Act, 
RSO 1990, (HPPA) and regulations. 

Boards of Health are the governing body bodies and policy makers of public health units. Boards of 
Health monitor all operations within their health unit and are accountable to the community and to the 
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. 

All Boards of Health have a legislated duty to ensure that the public health programs and services 
required by the HPPA are provided to people who live in the health unit jurisdiction. Public health 
programs and services are intended to prevent the spread of disease and to promote and protect health. 

The Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Programs, Services and Accountability 
Mandatory Health Programs and Services Guidelines (2008) or its most current revision, published by the 
Ministry of Health, set out the minimum requirements for fundamental public health programs and 
services for boards of health. 
 
Section 1 of Regulation 559 to the HPPA states that the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health 
Unit shall have eight municipal members.  Section 49 (3) of the HPPA states that the Lieutenant 
Governor in Council may appoint one or more persons as members of a board of health, but the number 
of members so appointed shall be less than the number of municipal members of the Board of Health.  
Therefore the maximum size of the Board  may be 15 members (8 municipal members + 7 provincial 
members).   

The distribution of board membership for the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Unit is as follows: 

 

Zero (0) to Seven (7) 
Members: 

appointed by the Lieutenant Governor to represent the Province of Ontario 
(currently 3 provincial members); 

Three (3) Members: appointed by the Council to represent the City of Sault Ste. Marie; 

One (1) Member: appointed by the Municipal Councils representing the Municipality of 
Wawa, Township of White River and Dubreuilville; 

One (1) Member: appointed by the Municipal Councils representing the Town of Blind River 
and the Townships of North Shore and Shedden; 

One (1) Member: appointed by the Municipal Councils representing the Town of Thessalon 
and Municipality of Huron Shores. 

Page 26 of 52



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-001 
 

 

One (1) Member: appointed by the Municipal Councils representing the Town of Bruce 
Mines, Village of Hilton Beach and the Townships of Hilton, Jocelyn, 
Johnson, Laird, Macdonald, Meredith and Aberdeen Additional, Plummer 
Additional, Prince,  
St. Joseph and Tarbutt and Tarbutt Additional; 

One (1) Member: appointed by the Municipal Council representing Elliot Lake. 

Maximum 
membership: 

Fifteen (15) members 

 
The appointment of members of municipal council(s) shall be for the term four year term of the council(s).  
Council(s) may have internal policies that further refine this term of appointment. 
 
Provincial appointees are for a three year term that may be renewed. 
 
Note: The City of Sault Ste. Marie has an internal policy that appointments of members by the municipal 
council representing the City of Sault Ste. Marie are for a  two year term but may end sooner with the 
ending of the term of office of the council.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27 of 52



APPENDIX A 

1 

BOARD MEMBER PROFILE MATRIX 
(15 member Board – 8 Municipal Members and 7 Provincial Members) 

SKILL / EXPERIENCE DESCRIPTION 
       NUMBER OF 

DIRECTORS    
 REQUIRING SKILL 

Core Skills 
Analytical and Critical 
Thinking 

• The ability to think analytically and critically, to evaluate different options, proposals
and arguments and make sound independent decisions.

All 

Inter-personal 
Communications 

• The ability to effectively communicate their ideas, positions, and perspective to their
peers, as well as understand the ideas, position, and perspective of their peers and
facilitate resolutions of differences in the common interest.

All 

Creative and Strategic 
Vision/Planning 

• The ability to envision and define future goals and objectives that provide
improved benefits for the groups and individuals on whose behalf the organization
acts. (For example, experience with strategic planning, performance
measurement, business planning, etc.)

All 

Understanding of the 
board’s governance role 

• Understanding of the appropriate roles, group processes, protocols and policies that form
the systems of board governance, including those related to the legal (fiduciary)
obligations of directors and a requirement to work in the best interests of the APH and
those it serves.

• Demonstrated judgment and integrity in an oversight role.
• Experience serving on a board of directors or governance committee and/or senior level

experience working with other strategic or policy boards preferred.
• Determination to act in one’s own independent deliberative judgment with confidence and

persistence in order to ask appropriate, relevant and necessary questions.

All 

Financial Literacy • Able to read and have a layman’s understanding of financial statements,
including budgets, income statements, balance sheets and cash flow projections.

All 

Community Knowledge • Knowledge of the community (fabric; particular needs) and more broadly, knowledge of
the needs of the Algoma District at large.

Commitment to Mandate • Demonstrates a strong understanding and commitment to the organization’s mandate,
including an awareness and commitment to working in the best interests of APH and
those it serves to protect public health.

All 

Page 28 of 52



APPENDIX A 

2 

Specific expertise with the 15 member Board 
(one or more) 

Financial • Expertise and experience (preferably with a designation) in financial accounting and
reporting and corporate finance.

• Comprehensive knowledge of internal financial controls, financial operational planning
and management in an organization that includes expertise in auditing, evaluating and
analyzing financial statements.

• Knowledge of best practices in procurement and contract management an advantage.

1 or more 

Communications / Public 
Relations Practices 

• Expertise and experience (preferably with a designation) with the planning, design,
implementation and evaluation of strategic communications, and/or stakeholder
relations initiatives.

1 or more 

Risk Management • Expertise and experience or consulting in analyzing exposure to risk in the private,
public or not-for-profit sector and successfully determining appropriate measures to
manage such exposure.

1 or more 

Education • Expertise and experience in the education sector, particularly, as it relates to subjects
of relevance to public health programs and services.

1 or more 

Legal • Expertise and experience in the law (preferably with a designation), particularly, as it
relates to subjects of relevance to public health programs and services.

1 or more 

Health Service Delivery • Expertise and experience in one or more aspects of health service delivery. Knowledge
and/or experience in aspects of public health service delivery an advantage.

1 or more 

Human Resources • Expertise and experience in human resources (preferably with a designation)
particularly in the areas of compensation, labour relations, change management,
organizational development and leadership.

1 or more 

Information Management / 
Information Technology 

• Expertise and experience in IT/IM, particularly as it relates to systems and policies for
data security and protecting privacy.

1 or more 

OTHER REPRESENTATION CONSIDERATIONS 
Other • As much as possible, given the limitations of the current legislated appointment process, the board will aspire

to support a Board of Health membership that represents the diversity of the communities it serves.

Page 29 of 52



 

 

Algoma Public Health – Policies and Procedures Manual – Board Polices and Procedures 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-010 
    
DATE: Original: February 12, 1996 SECTION: Policies 
 Revised: September 22, 2015   
 Revised: November 25, 2015 

Revised: March 28, 2018 
Revised: May 27, 2020 

SUBJECT: Board Minutes/Packages – 
Posting/Circulation/Retention 

    

POLICY: 

Algoma Public Health utilizes electronic board management software for access to agenda packages for 
board members. Agenda packages will be posted to the platform on the Friday prior to the scheduled 1 week 
prior to the board meetings.   The agenda package is also posted to the APH website for public access with 
the exception of unapproved minutes. Once the meeting minutes have been approved by the Algoma Public 
Health Board, the approved minutes will then be posted on the website.  

Algoma Public Health Board “In-Camera” documentation will be posted to the platform along with the Board 
Meeting Package to allow Board Members time to become familiarized with information prior to meetings.  
Board members should not make copies, save to desktop, photograph, or download in any format any 
version of the in-committee documentation to save. Minutes of “In-Camera” sessions will be passed while 
in the next “In-Camera” session. Once the meeting is complete the “In-Camera” package will be removed 
from the platform.  

Addendum packages will be posted to the platform and the APH website as soon as it is available. 

Access, storage and retrieval of this information will be in accordance with general standards of APH and the 
Municipal Act section 239.2 and Section 239.3. 

 

PROCEDURES:  

Secretary to the Board of Health: 1) Will upload the Board package and In-Camera package to the 
electronic board management platform one weekon the Friday 
prior to the scheduled Board meeting. 

 2) Will post the Board package to the Algoma Public Health 
Website and email the link to municipalities one week on the 
Friday prior to the scheduled Board meeting. In-Camera 
documentation will not be included. 

Board: 3) Will access the meeting package(s) on an electronic board 
management platform prior to the board meeting. 

Secretary to the Board of Health: 4) Maintain a binder of the original signed approved Board minutes 
plus signed resolutions by the Board Chair for each Board 
meeting on a yearly basis. 

 5) Allow onsite access to Board of Health members to review the 
“In-Camera” binder as required with reasonable notice.   

 

Page 30 of 52



 
Algoma Public Health –Policy and Procedure Manual - Board 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-030 
    
DATE: Original: June 20, 2007 SECTION: Board 
 Reviewed; June 17, 2014   
 Revised  October 28, 2015 SUBJECT: Board Member Code of Conduct 
 Revised: March 28, 2018 

Revised: May 27, 2020 
  

    
 
The Algoma Public Health Board believes that its members must adhere to a high standard of ethical 
behavior in all aspects of their conduct at all times and that all members shall fulfill their duties in a manner 
that maintains and enhances public confidence in the APH Board.  
 
 
POLICY: 
 
Each member of the Board of Health shall comply with the Code of Conduct for the District of Algoma 
Health Unit (operating as Algoma Public Health).  The Code of Conduct will be added to the agenda of the 
first Board of Health meeting each year for a review of expectations.   
 
CODE OF CONDUCT: 
 
Board Members shall: 

1) Adhere to all Board of Health bylaws, policies, and rules of procedure and perform their duties with 
integrity, transparency and accountability. 
 

2) Represent the best interests of public and community health and the respective programs and 
services of Algoma Public Health.  

 
3) Comply with conflict of interest policy and declare conflicts either perceived or actual on agenda 

matters as appropriate. 
 

4) Keep in confidence any confidential information acquired by virtue of their position as a board 
member. 

 
5) Attend both board and committee meetings as scheduled as it is an important accountability for all 

members.  The expectation is that all members attend a minimum of 2/3 of all meetings within the 
year unless approved by the chair of the board or affected committee. 

 
6) Preserve a state of neutrality by supporting and endorsing board and committee decisions 

regardless of the level of prior personal disagreement. Public inquiries regarding APH services shall 
be directed to the board chair or MOH/CEO or delegate 
  

7) Review board package materials in advance of the meeting and participate productively in 
meetings.  

 
8) Recognize that only the Board of Health Chair speaks for the board on public disclosures unless the 

chair delegates that responsibility on a specific topic. 
 

9) Not publish or post on social media, a statement that could impair the public’s confidence in the 
Algoma Public Health Unit and its ability to make transparent, objective, impartial and fair decisions 
that are in the public interest. 

Page 31 of 52



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-030 
 

10) Interact with each other, staff and members of the public with respect, diplomacy and dignity. 
Respect the boundaries between the roles of staff and the roles of board and committee members.  

 
11)  Support one another and the MOH/CEO.  

 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
If a board member has a performance concern that violates the Code of Conduct, and is unable to resolve 
with informal communication with the member or regarding the MOH/CEO, the concern shall be brought to 
the Chair of the board or Vice Chair (if issue is with Chair). 
 
The Board Chair in collaboration with the two Vice-Chairs (if issue is with a Vice-Chair the remaining Vice 
Chair and Board Chair will be involved) will mediate any disputes between Board members and/or the 
MOH/CEO in situations where the parties were unable to resolve the issue.  
 
Where a Board or Committee member believes that another board or committee member has violated the 
Code of Conduct with respect to confidentiality or a conflict of interest that has not been declared despite 
any appropriate informal communications, the board or committee member shall advise an appropriate 
person such as the Chair of the Board or Chair of  the affected  committee. The Board Chair will in 
collaboration with the two Vice-Chairs investigate and try to resolve the issue informally.     
 
Where there has been a failure on the part of a Chair and Vice-Chairs to resolve informally, the issue will 
be brought back to the entire Board for review. The Board may request that the Chair: 

i) Issue a verbal reprimand; or 
ii) Issue a written reprimand; or  
iii) Request that the Board member resign or 
iv) Seek dismissal of the Board member based on regulations relevant as to how the board 

member \ was appointed. 

Page 32 of 52



Serving the residents of Curve Lake and Hiawatha First Nations, and the County and City of Peterborough 

Jackson Square, 185 King Street, Peterborough, ON K9J 2R8 
P: 705-743-1000 or 1-877-743-0101 

F: 705-743-2897 
peterboroughpublichealth.ca 

 

April 30, 2020 

The Honourable Christine Elliott 
Minister of Health 
10th Floor, Hepburn Block 
80 Grosvenor Street 
Toronto ON M7A 2C4 
Sent via e-mail:  Christine.elliott@pc.ola.org 
 
Dear Minister Elliott: 
 
Re: Provincial Leadership in the Monitoring of Food Affordability and Food Insecurity  
 
Household food insecurity is a serious public health problem in Ontario. Household food insecurity is the 
inadequate or insecure access to food due to financial constraints, and is experienced by 13.3% of Ontario 
households (Tarasuk & Mitchell, 2020). Monitoring local food insecurity and food affordability is critical for 
Peterborough Public Health and local public health agencies (LPHAs) across Ontario to assess trends over time, 
identify community needs, and support access to safe healthy food. The Board of Peterborough Public Health 
is also required to monitor Food Affordability, as specified by the Ontario Public Health Standards.  
 
Health Canada recently updated the National Nutritious Food Basket based on the 2019 Canada’s Food Guide. 
A Reference Guide and spreadsheet were released in February 2020. In order for this to be used for data 
collection, protocols must be developed at the regional/territorial level. We ask that the Ontario Ministry of 
Health take leadership in developing a protocol in collaboration with Ontario’s LPHAs and the Ontario 
Dietitians in Public Health.  
 
Peterborough Public Health would also like to express the importance of availability of local Household Food 
Insecurity data from the Canadian Community Health Survey. We ask that Household Food Insecurity be 
included as a core module in Ontario, and that Ministry release 2018 Household Food Insecurity Data to 
Ontario LPHAs. This is critical for our board of health to conduct population health assessment and 
interventions to address local needs. 
 
Thank you for your attention to supporting local boards of health in addressing the important issues of food 
insecurity and food affordability.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Original signed by 
 
Mayor Andy Mitchell 
Chair, Board of Health 
 
 

Page 33 of 52

mailto:Christine.elliott@pc.ola.org
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/food-nutrition/food-nutrition-surveillance/national-nutritious-food-basket/contents.html#foods-and-bev


Serving the residents of Curve Lake and Hiawatha First Nations, and the County and City of Peterborough 

 
 
cc: Dr. David Williams, Ontario, Ontario Chief Medical Officer of Health 

Local MPPs 
France Gélinas, MPP, Health Critic 
John Fraser, MPP, Health Critic 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Boards of Health 
 

 
Reference: Tarasuk V, Mitchell A. (2020) Household food insecurity in Canada, 2017-18. Toronto: Research to identify policy options 
to reduce food insecurity (PROOF). Retrieved from https://proof.utoronto.ca/

Page 34 of 52

https://proof.utoronto.ca/


 

 
April 30, 2020 
 
 
Hon. Todd Smith, Minister of Children, Community and Social Services 
Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services, Hepburn Block, 6th Floor 
80 Grosvenor St, 
Toronto, ON M7A 1E9 
Sent via e-mail: Todd.smithco@pc.ola.org  
 
Dear Minister Smith, 
 
Re: Consultation for a new Ontario Poverty Reduction Strategy 
 
The Timiskaming Health Unit (THU) commends the Government of Ontario’s interest in poverty reduction and applauds 
its public consultation to inform the development of a new provincial strategy.  
 
THU recognizes that the prolonged stress of continually struggling to satisfy basic needs negatively impacts the physical 
and mental health of entire families; however, poverty doesn’t just affect those experiencing it. Poverty costs the 
Ontario economy over $27 billion annually, with the cost of maintaining poverty far outweighing the cost of addressing 
it.1 Currently, there are 1.57 million Ontarians, including 382,000 children living in poverty.1 Despite previous declines in 
childhood poverty, much work remains. In the district of Timiskaming, 18% of people continue to live in low-income 
households, including 20% of children under the age of 18 years.3  
 
Poverty persists in the presence of low unemployment rates. While a strong economy and job creation are essential 
combatants of poverty, low educational attainment, precarious employment, low wages, disability, as well as a lack of 
affordable housing and child care contribute to its maintenance. A comprehensive poverty reduction strategy must 
address an entire gamut of issues - from a lack of individual resources and supports to political and economic 
structures.4 

 

Poverty is a multi-dimensional phenomenon and requires a multi-dimensional approach. Based on this premise, we 
have included our recommendations for Ontario’s new poverty reduction strategy in Schedule A. We are confident that 
implementation of these recommendations will have a positive impact on reducing poverty in Ontario. Thank you for 
providing us with the opportunity to contribute to this worthwhile endeavour. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Carman Kidd 
Board of Health Chair 
 
Enclosure 
 
c.c. Mr. John Vanthof, MPP, Timiskaming-Cochrane 
 Ontario Boards of Health 

Page 35 of 52

mailto:Todd.smithco@pc.ola.org


 
 
 
 

ISSUE RATIONALE RECOMMENDATIONS 

INCOME 

Jobs that pay a living wage are essential. Income is a significant determinant of 
health as it influences overall living conditions, including psychological 
functioning, health-related behaviours, food security, housing, and other 
prerequisites of health.5 Poor health is both the cause and the result of 
poverty. At present, poverty costs the Ontario health care system $3.9 billion 
annually.1 In the district of Timiskaming, 18% of people continue to live in low-
income households, including 20% of children under the age of 18 years.3 

Chronic stress resulting from the struggles to satisfy basic needs such as food, 
and shelter impacts the physical and mental health of low-income families. 
Increasing incomes for those living in poverty results in a reduction of stress, 
mental illness, and chronic disease resulting in overall health care spending6 

THU recommends that the province of 
Ontario reinstate the guaranteed basic 
income pilot projects and an increase 
in the minimum wage for Ontario 
workers. We endorse Bill 60 and call 
for increases to income assistance 
rates for Ontario Works (OW), as well 
as Ontario Disability Supports Program 
(ODSP) recipients to sufficiently cover 
basic needs (i.e., shelter, food, 
clothing, and transportation). THU 
further recommends that future 
adjustments to minimum wages and 
social assistance rates align with 
inflation. 

EDUCATION 

 
 
 
Education invariably leads to better health as it is associated with higher 
incomes, increased civic engagement, and healthier lifestyles.5 Post-secondary 
education is protective against poverty. Compared to the rest of Ontario, 
residents in Timiskaming are less likely to complete high school or university.3 
The Ontario Student Assistant Program (OSAP) financially assists students in 
obtaining a post-secondary education through loans and grants. While we 
commend the Government of Ontario’s 10 percent decrease in tuition fees, 
the elimination of free tuition for low-income students is troublesome. Recent 
changes to the OSAP program may deter low-income students from pursuing 
post-secondary education and thus limiting their socioeconomic mobility. 
 
 
 

THU recommends increasing access to 
post-secondary programs for low-
income students through free tuition, a 
return to previous grant/loan 
amounts, and reinstatement of the six-
month interest-free grace period 
following graduation. 

Page 36 of 52



 
ISSUE RATIONALE RECOMMENDATIONS 

ASSET & CAPACITY 
BUILDING 

Generational poverty is more than the mere absence of monetary resources 
and often includes insufficient support systems, role models, and coping 
strategies. A lack of resources hinders socioeconomic mobility while increasing 
the likelihood of remaining in poverty.4 Asset building programs have the 
potential to assist individuals to transition out of poverty through the use of 
mentors and peer support. These programs can save Ontarians a substantial 
amount of money but more research is required.7 It is essential for the 
Government of Ontario to continue to build capacity within Public Health 
Ontario and local public health that will facilitate the data collection, 
assessment and evaluation of unique initiatives such as the Bridges Out of 
Poverty – Circles program to assist and support individuals leaving poverty. 

 

THU recommends that the 
Government of Ontario invest in the 
creation, expansion, and evaluation of 
asset building programs (e.g., Bridges 
Out of Poverty- Circles). It is also 
recommended that the Province of 
Ontario continue to invest in Public 
Health Ontario and local public health 
initiatives to permit the necessary data 
collection, and evidence gathering to 
understand, prevent, and mitigate 
poverty.  

CHILD CARE & 
EARLY CHILDHOOD 

EDUCATION 

Early childhood experiences influence later physical, social, emotional, and 
cognitive development, which impacts future learning, educational 
achievement, employment, and health. In 2018/19, throughout Ontario there 
were 446,596 spaces in licensed child care facilities – enough for 22.4% of 
Ontario’s children age 0-12 years.8 Ontario has the highest median full-time 
child care infant fees in the country at $1,758 per month or $21,096 annually.9 
In rural northern Ontario, pre-school child care fees are approximately $825 
per month or $9,900 per year.9 In 2019, approximately 29% of children in 
licensed child care centres qualified for subsidies compared to 68% of children 
in licensed home child care.8 Child care must be affordable, accessible, and of 
high-quality to permit parents to engage in paid work, ensure the attainment 
of developmental milestones, and address child & family poverty in Ontario.10 

THU recommends the creation of a 
universal, high-quality, accessible, and 
affordable child care system provided 
by a well-trained and well-paid 
workforce. 

HOUSING 

Adequate housing is vital to one’s dignity, safety, and ability to contribute to 
society. Without proper shelter, people are not able to maintain employment, 
recover from mental illness, be part of their community, maintain custody of 
their children, leave abusive relationships, or escape situations involving 
human trafficking.11 Rates of public assistance and minimum wage have not 
kept pace with rising rents in Ontario, which excludes vulnerable individuals 
from the rental market. In Timiskaming, 21% of households live in 
unaffordable housing, spending 30% or more of their income on shelter cost.12 

THU recommends the province work 
with municipalities to develop a 
strategy to address affordable housing 
shortages and chronic homelessness, 
which includes the creation of new 
affordable housing. Further 
recommendations include an increase 
in provincial funding for the repair and 
maintenance of social housing units. 

Page 37 of 52



 
ISSUE RATIONALE RECOMMENDATIONS 

DISABILITIES 

 
One in seven Ontarians (15%) live with a disability.13 People with disabilities 
continue to face barriers to education and employment opportunities. They 
are more likely to have low-income status, and less likely to live in adequate, 
affordable housing than people without disabilities.13 The Ontario government 
has proposed changing the definition of disability to align with the Federal 
government’s much more stringent definition used to determine eligibility for 
Canada Pension Plan Disability Benefits.14 The change in definition would lead 
to a large number of Ontarians being ineligible for ODSP benefits. This change 
would lead to a greater dependence on OW, which pays much less and does 
not provide disability supports. 
 

THU recommends the Ontario 
government maintain its current 
definition of disability to determine 
eligibility for ODSP benefits.   

PHARMACARE 

Approximately 2.2 million Ontarians have no prescription drug coverage.15 Too 
frequently, cost restrictions force Ontarians to fail to fill or renew their 
prescriptions, skip doses, or split pills to make their medications last longer.16 

In 2015, 24% of Ontarians reported that they or someone in their household 
failed to take their medication as prescribed due to cost.16 Women are 
particularly disadvantaged as they are more likely to be prescribed medication 
than men, but are less likely to have medication coverage through paid work.17 
Illness and disability prevent people from working, force many to live in 
poverty, and increase health care expenses. 

 
THU recommends the Ontario 
government work with the 
Government of Canada to create and 
implement a universal and 
comprehensive Pharmacare program 
for all Ontarians. 
 
 

 
 
 

ORAL HEALTH 
 
 
 
 

Poor oral health negatively impacts general health and is associated with 
various health risks ranging from poor nutritional intake18 to coronary heart 
disease.19 Individuals in the lowest income group are less likely to receive 
preventive treatment and more likely to decline dental services due to costs 
compared to those with higher incomes.20 In Timiskaming, only 56.7% of 
residents reported having insurance coverage for dental expenses,21 and a 
mere 54.9% of residents reported visiting the dentist in the past year.22 While 
THU recognizes the value of the Healthy Smiles Ontario program and 
commends the Government of Ontario for the implementation of the Ontario 
Seniors Dental Care Program, the dental needs of low-income workers age 18 
to 64 years remain unmet. Facial pain, infection, and illness are barriers to 
employment and cost our health care system. 

THU recommends the Government of 
Ontario create a publicly funded 
system for oral health care that is 
accessible to all individuals living in 
low-income households regardless of 
age.  

Page 38 of 52



 
ISSUE RATIONALE RECOMMENDATIONS 

PAID SICK LEAVE 
 
 

When employees go to work sick, they not only risk their health, but they risk 
the health of their co-workers as well as the general public through the spread 
of infectious diseases (e.g., COVID-19). However, most low-income earners 
have a minimal choice due to a lack of paid sick days and financial obligations. 
Low-income earners such as those working in the food and hospitality industry 
are of particular importance because illnesses such as Norovirus, Samonella 
Typhi, Hepatitis A, etc., are transmittable to the general public during the food 
production and handling process.23 Currently, in Ontario, employers are only 
required to provide three “unpaid” sick days per year. The average number of 
sick days taken in Canada by workers in the private sector is nine days per 
year.24  

THU recommends the Government of 
Ontario amend the Employment 
Standards Act to include a minimum of 
Seven (7) “paid” sick days per year for 
employees regularly scheduled to work 
30 hours or more per week. Part-time 
and seasonal workers to receive paid 
sick days based on a pro-rata basis. 

Page 39 of 52



 

References 
1. Lee, C.R., & Briggs, A. The costs of poverty in Ontario: 10 Years Later. Toronto, ON: Feed Ontario; 2019. 

Available at: https://feedontario.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Feed-Ontario-Cost-of-Poverty-
2019.pdf 

2. Ontario Minister of Housing. Poverty Reduction Strategy (Annual Report 2017). Available at: 
https://www.ontario.ca/page/poverty-reduction-strategy-annual-report-2017 

3.  Statistics Canada (2017). Timiskaming Health Unit, [Health region, December 2017], Ontario and 
Ontario [Province] (table). Census Profile. 2016 Census. Statistics Canada Catalogue no. 98-316-
X2016001. Ottawa. Released November 29, 2017. Available at: https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-
recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E (accessed July 24, 2018). 

4. Payne, R.K., DeVol, P.E., & Smith, T.D. Bridges out of poverty: Strategies for Professionals and 
Communities, Revised Ed. Highlands Tx: Aha Process Inc., 2009.  

5. Mikkonen, J. & Raphael, D. Social Determinants of Health: The Canadian Facts. Toronto, ON: York 
University School of Health and Policy Management; 2010. 

6. Forget, E.L. The town with no poverty: The health effects of a Canadian Guaranteed Annual Income 
field experiment. Canadian Public Policy, 37(3), 283-305; 2011. Available at: 
https://www.utpjournals.press/doi/pdf/10.3138/cpp.37.3.283 

7. London Ontario Works. Ontario Works Employment Innovations: Bridges Out of Poverty/Circles 
Evaluation #2. October 2018. Accessed on March 2, 2020 from https://pub-
london.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=52343 

8. Government of Ontario. Early years and child care annual report 2019. Toronto ON: Queen’s Printer for 
Ontario; 2019. Available at: 
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/childcare/EarlyYearsChildCareAnnualReport2019.pdf. Accessed on March 
10, 2020. 

9. Macdonald, D. & Friendly, M. Time out: Child care fees in Canada 2017. Ottawa ON: Canadian Centre 
for Policy Alternatives; 2017. Available at: https://www.policyalternatives.ca/timeout. Access on March 
10, 2020. 

10. Mustachi, J. Ending child & family poverty is not negotiable: Building Stronger Foundations for Ontario 
Families. Toronto, ON: Ontario Campaign 2000; 2017. from https://ontariocampaign2000.ca/wp-
content/uploads/2017/11/ReportCardOntarioNov212017.pdf. Accessed on March 2, 2020 

11. Ontario Human Rights Commission. Right at home: Report on the consultation on human rights and 
rental housing in Ontario. Toronto ON: Queen’s Printer for Ontario; 2008. Available at: 
http://www.ohrc.on.ca/en/right-home-report-consultation-human-rights-and-rental-housing-ontario. 
Accessed on March 3, 2020. 

12. Statistics Canada. 2017. Timiskaming Health Unit,[Health region, December2017], Ontario and Ontario 
[Province] (table). Census Profile. 2016 Census. Statistics Canada Catalogue no. 98-316-X2016001. 
Ottawa. Released November 29, 2017. Available at: https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-
recensement/2016/dp-
pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=HR&Code1=3563&Geo2=PR&Code2=35&SearchText=timiska

Page 40 of 52

https://feedontario.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Feed-Ontario-Cost-of-Poverty-2019.pdf
https://feedontario.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Feed-Ontario-Cost-of-Poverty-2019.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/page/poverty-reduction-strategy-annual-report-2017
https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E
https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E
https://www.utpjournals.press/doi/pdf/10.3138/cpp.37.3.283
https://pub-london.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=52343
https://pub-london.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=52343
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/childcare/EarlyYearsChildCareAnnualReport2019.pdf
https://www.policyalternatives.ca/timeout
https://ontariocampaign2000.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/ReportCardOntarioNov212017.pdf
https://ontariocampaign2000.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/ReportCardOntarioNov212017.pdf
http://www.ohrc.on.ca/en/right-home-report-consultation-human-rights-and-rental-housing-ontario
https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=HR&Code1=3563&Geo2=PR&Code2=35&SearchText=timiskaming+health+unit&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=Housing&TABID=1&type=0
https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=HR&Code1=3563&Geo2=PR&Code2=35&SearchText=timiskaming+health+unit&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=Housing&TABID=1&type=0
https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=HR&Code1=3563&Geo2=PR&Code2=35&SearchText=timiskaming+health+unit&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=Housing&TABID=1&type=0


 

ming+health+unit&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=Housing&TABID=1&type=0. Accessed on 
March 4, 2020. 

13. Statistics Canada. A profile of persons with disabilities among Canadians aged 15 years of older, 2012. 
Available at: https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/pub/89-654-x/89-654-x2015001-eng.htm#a4. Accessed 
March 4, 2020. 

14. Wintermute, D. ODSP: Redefining disability. Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act; 2019. 
Available at: https://www.aoda.ca/odsp-redefining-disability/. Accessed on March 4, 2020. 

15. Government of Ontario. 2015/16 Report Card for the Ontario Drug Benefit Program, Slide 7, Available 
at: http://health.gov.on.ca/en/public/programs/drugs/publications/opdp/docs/odb_report_16.pdf. 
Accessed on March 4, 2020.  

16. Angus Reid Institute, “Prescription drug access and affordability an issue for nearly a quarter of all 
Canadian households. 2015, July 15. Available at: http://angusreid.org/wp-
content/uploads/2015/07/2015.07.09-Pharma.pdf. Accessed on March 4, 2020. 

17. Armstrong, P. & Armstrong, H. About Canada Health Care, 2nd Edition. Halifax NS: Fernwood Publishing, 
2016. 

18. Hutton, B., Feine, J., & Morais, J.Is there an association between edentulism and nutritional state? 
Journal of the Canadian Dental Association, 68(3), 182-7; 2002. 

19. Joshipura, K. J., Rimm, E.B., Douglass,  C. W., Trichopoulos, D., Asherio, A., Willett, W. C.  Poor oral 
health and coronary heart disease. Dental Research, 75(9), 1631-1636; 1996. doi: 10.1186/s12903-016-
0316-7 

20. Health Canada (2010). Summary report on findings of the oral health component of the Canadian 
Health Measures Survey. 2007-2009. Ottawa ON.  Health Canada; 2010.  

21. Public Health Ontario. Oral Health Snapshot. Toronto, ON: Ontario Agency for Health Protection and 
Promotion; 2016 Nov 30. Available at: https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/data-and-
analysis/health-behaviours/oral-health 

22. Canadian Community Health Survey. (2013/2014). Statistics Canada, Share Files, Ontario Ministry of 
Health and Long-Term Care. 

23. World Health Organization (WHO). Foodborne disease outbreaks: Guidelines for investigation and 
control. Geneva, Switzerland: WHO; 2008. Available at: 
https://www.who.int/foodsafety/publications/foodborne_disease/outbreak_guidelines.pdf 

24. Statistics Canada.  Table  14-10-0196-01   Work absence of full-time employees by public and private 
sector, annual Available at: https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/tv.action?pid=1410019601 

 

Page 41 of 52

https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=HR&Code1=3563&Geo2=PR&Code2=35&SearchText=timiskaming+health+unit&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=Housing&TABID=1&type=0
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/pub/89-654-x/89-654-x2015001-eng.htm%23a4
https://www.aoda.ca/odsp-redefining-disability/
http://health.gov.on.ca/en/public/programs/drugs/publications/opdp/docs/odb_report_16.pdf
http://angusreid.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/2015.07.09-Pharma.pdf
http://angusreid.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/2015.07.09-Pharma.pdf
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/data-and-analysis/health-behaviours/oral-health
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/data-and-analysis/health-behaviours/oral-health
https://www.who.int/foodsafety/publications/foodborne_disease/outbreak_guidelines.pdf
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/tv.action?pid=1410019601
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/tv.action?pid=1410019601
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/tv.action?pid=1410019601


Page 42 of 52



Page 43 of 52



Page 44 of 52



 

 

 
May 20, 2020 
 
 
The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau, P.C., MP 
Prime Minister of Canada 
Office of the Prime Minister 
80 Wellington Street 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A2 
 
The Honourable Chrystia Freeland, P.C., M.P. 
Deputy Prime Minister 
Privy Council Office 
Room 1000 
80 Sparks Street 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A3 
 
The Honourable Bill Morneau, P.C., M.P. 
Minister of Finance 
90 Elgin Street, 17th Floor 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0G5 
 
Dear Prime Minister Trudeau, Deputy Prime Minister Freeland and Minister Morneau:  
 
Re: Basic Income for Income Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond 
 
On behalf of the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) Board of Health, I am writing to 
convey our strong support for the evolution of the Canada Emergency Response Benefit 
(CERB) into a basic income for all Canadians, during the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond. 
 
While we commend the federal government for the economic measures that have been put into 
place to support Canadians during this unprecedented time of the COVID-19 pandemic, we also 
know that many are falling through the cracks. Measures such as the CERB, the Canada 
Emergency Student Benefit (CESB) and the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS), 
though necessary and very important, have left many Canadians, who do not qualify for or not 
able to access these programs, vulnerable to household food insecurity and the negative 
consequences of income insecurity and poverty such as inadequate or unstable housing, and 
poorer mental and physical health, including chronic diseases. A basic income would address 
these gaps, offering support to the most vulnerable Canadians.  
 
Before the COVID-19 pandemic, many Canadians were already experiencing household food 
insecurity. In 2017-18 approximately 4.4-million (1 in 8) Canadians reported being food 
insecure, including 1.2 million children under the age of 18.i  As a result of COVID-19, this 
number is predicted to increase as many individuals are facing precarious employment, have 
had their hours reduced or have lost their jobs altogether. Many are relying on food banks and 
other charitable programs, however, this only meets the need on a temporary basis and is not a 
long term solution.   

Page 45 of 52



 
Examples of key Canadian initiatives that demonstrate the positive impact of basic income-like 
programs on health and well-being include the Old Age Security and Guaranteed Income 
Supplement through Canada’s public pension system, the Canada Child Benefit, and the 
Newfoundland Poverty Reduction Strategy.  
 
Basic income pilots for working-age adults in Canada have also led to promising findings, 
including the Mincome pilot in Manitoba and the recent Ontario Basic Income Pilot. The 
research study, Southern Ontario’s Basic Income Experience released in March 2020, is based 
on Ontario’s pilot. This pilot was implemented in three Ontario cities in 2018 by the provincial 
government, and the project was terminated in 2019 following a change in government. While 
the formal pilot evaluation was cancelled, this research study made use of surveys of individuals 
from Hamilton, Brantford and Brant County who had been enrolled in the pilot (217 individuals 
participated out of 1000 enrolled households), and interviews with 40 participants. Some of the 
key findings cited by participants in this report include improvements in physical and mental 
health; increased labour market participation; moving to higher paying and more secure jobs; 
reduced household food insecurity; housing stability; improved financial status and social 
relationships; less frequent visits to health practitioners and hospital emergency rooms; 
improved living standards; and an improved sense of self-worth and hope for a better future.   
 
Additional evidence supporting the potential of a basic income for reducing the prevalence and 
severity of household food insecurity is presented in: Implications of a Basic Income Guarantee 
for Household Food Insecurity, a research paper prepared for the Northern Policy Institute 
based on the Ontario Basic Income Pilot.  
 
Moving forward during and following the COVID-19 pandemic is an opportune time for the 
federal government to take action to evolve the CERB into a basic income. This would provide 
income security to all Canadians during the economic challenges of the pandemic itself, the 
post-pandemic recovery, and into the future. This is particularly pertinent given the dramatic 
shifts in the labour market in recent decades, such that full-time permanent employment is no 
longer the norm. The current CERB has helped demonstrate the logistical feasibility of 
delivering a basic income, and it could be readily evolved into an ongoing basic income for 
anyone who falls below a certain income floor.  There is evidence of growing support for this 
concept, as outlined in Appendix A. The Basic Income Canada Network has outlined key 
features of basic income design for Canada, which we support. 
 
The SMDHU has been a strong proponent of basic income repeatedly since 2015. This includes 
having sponsored a resolution at the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) 
general meeting endorsing the concept of basic income and requesting the federal and 
provincial governments jointly consider and investigate a basic income policy option for reducing 
poverty and income insecurity (2015), and expressing support and input into the Ontario Basic 
Income Pilot (2017). SMDHU has also been encouraging advocacy for income solutions to 
household food insecurity through our No Money for Food is Cent$less initiative since 2017. 
 
In keeping with this, we strongly recommend your government take swift and immediate action 
on the evolution of the CERB Benefit into legislation for a basic income as an effective long-term 

Page 46 of 52

https://proof.utoronto.ca/resources/proof-annual-reports/implications-of-a-basic-income-guarantee-for-household-food-insecurity/
https://proof.utoronto.ca/resources/proof-annual-reports/implications-of-a-basic-income-guarantee-for-household-food-insecurity/
https://d3n8a8pro7vhmx.cloudfront.net/bicn/pages/164/attachments/original/1459964930/The_Basic_Income_We_Want.pdf?1459964930
https://d3n8a8pro7vhmx.cloudfront.net/bicn/pages/164/attachments/original/1459964930/The_Basic_Income_We_Want.pdf?1459964930
http://www.simcoemuskokahealth.org/Topics/HealthEquity/poverty=hunger


response to the problems of income insecurity, persistent poverty and household food 
insecurity, as well as a response to the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
ORIGINAL Signed By: 
 
Anita Dubeau 
Chair, Board of Health 
 
AD:CS:cm 
 
Encl. (1) 
 
cc. Hon. Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario  

Simcoe and Muskoka MPs and MPPs 
Simcoe Muskoka Municipal Councils 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Public Health Association 
Ontario Boards of Health 
 

Page 47 of 52



Appendix A: Examples of Support for Basic Income in Response to COVID-19 and 
Beyond 

On April 21, 2020, 50 members of Canada’s Senate wrote a letter to the federal government 
calling for a restructuring of the CERB into a minimum basic income to “ensure greater social 
and economic equity”, especially for those who are most vulnerable. In support of this letter, 
Senator McPhedran’s Youth Advisory Council, the Canadian Council of Young Feminists, in 
collaboration with the Basic Income Canada Youth Network, sent their own letter to the federal 
government.  
 
In our region, Simcoe North MP Bruce Stanton has expressed agreement that it’s time to 
consider basic income. He is quoted as saying “Based on my reading of this, like Senator 
Boniface, I am persuaded that it could be very good public policy” (News Story). 
 
The Ontario Dietitians’ of Public Health (ODPH) have also written a letter to the federal 
government stating “We ask that you take immediate action to enact legislation for a basic 
income guarantee as an effective long-term response to the problem of persistent poverty and 
household food insecurity as well as shorter-term consequences of the economic fallout of the 
COVID-19 pandemic”.  
 
The Board of Health of the Kingston, Frontenac, Lennox and Addington Health Unit in Ontario 
also passed a motion requesting the federal government to provide a basic income support to 
all Canadians (News Story). 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48 of 52

https://99ef1c2f-cf4f-4886-a2a6-e608d33a7c01.filesusr.com/ugd/138236_ba7a4dd75e85420994980904ba220a12.pdf
https://99ef1c2f-cf4f-4886-a2a6-e608d33a7c01.filesusr.com/ugd/138236_a0d1f9b6362c4ec0b019d781c68cebe8.pdf
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/area-senator-joins-growing-chorus-calling-for-minimum-basic-income-2289206
https://www.odph.ca/upload/membership/document/2020-05/covid-19-basicincomesupport-letter-may-4-2020.pdf
https://www.thewhig.com/news/local-news/kfla-board-of-health-calls-for-guaranteed-basic-income-during-pandemic


From: Susan Lee
To: All Health Units
Subject: alPHa Information Break - May 20, 2020
Date: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 12:19:10 PM

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 PLEASE ROUTE TO:
 
All Board of Health Members / Members of Health & Social Services Committees

 
May 20, 2020

This update is a tool to keep alPHa's members apprised of the latest
news in public health including provincial announcements, legislation,
alPHa activities, correspondence and events. 

National Health Day Celebrations

In honour of National Health Day (May 12), alPHa released a
statement and infographic in recognition of the vital role public
health workers have played in the COVID-19 response. The
statement and infographic highlight how public health protects and
improves health by preventing illness and promoting well-being.
alPHa followed up with a letter to the Minister of Health and a series
of Twitter posts which resulted in our most successful tweets to
date.  Members are encouraged to help spread the word and
distribute these materials broadly within their local communities.
Special thanks to Toronto Public Health and Eastern Ontario Health
Unit for partnering on the campaign materials.
View the statement and infographic here
Download the English version infographic here
Download the French version infographic here

Page 49 of 52

mailto:susan@alphaweb.org
mailto:AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fcdn.ymaws.com-252Fwww.alphaweb.org-252Fresource-252Fcollection-252FC9E48A93-2D5DC0-2D4EAE-2D9108-2D14082B79FC3F-252FalPHa-5FLetter-5FNat-5FHealth-5FDay-5F120520.pdf_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_MXKN6-5Fd-5FBvPkMAF81yw9tix-5FGnU-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=MjC2SMzKtDVonsWg6aYLQg94PsemBkYfgI4p-XCZgNY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Ftwitter.com-252FPHAgencies-252Fstatus-252F1260193492715868165_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_0Dkv813JCutTfGMYEQXB9HKn9ys-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=RvVF864I_GH9Yp4VWrJQyV4klWQRefdnh7soPa_Xgbw&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fcdn.ymaws.com-252Fwww.alphaweb.org-252Fresource-252Fcollection-252FC9E48A93-2D5DC0-2D4EAE-2D9108-2D14082B79FC3F-252FalPHa-5FStatement-5FNHD-5F120520.pdf_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_-5FhcFtCuD59zIsmF24eXQzQzybmY-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=KcWVEM8hWmAx0qs7Ws-q8ajKlypAcJC3vBDd3iXJhu0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fcdn.ymaws.com-252Fwww.alphaweb.org-252Fresource-252Fcollection-252F86D31666-2DE7EA-2D42F1-2DBDA1-2DA03ECA0B4E3D-252FPH-5FCOVID-5FInfographic-5F120520.png_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_nfpIFhpa9y-2DlnEI2kx8jgP0vnLE-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=E9Fm9R15zWpRmG9p26VSZUyELoiL7RTq96n7AsHxFbE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fcdn.ymaws.com-252Fwww.alphaweb.org-252Fresource-252Fcollection-252F86D31666-2DE7EA-2D42F1-2DBDA1-2DA03ECA0B4E3D-252FSP-5FCOVID-5FInfographique-5F120520.png_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_0aNVxf2J6whokMBR5WoUBJtjesI-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=4P8g-kCmUPIBgzM00SJeV370LXiYpQy57XJey5l5NFA&e=


COVID-19 

On May 15, alPHa wrote the Premier of Ontario on the role of local
boards of health and their legislated responsibilities and duty to
govern with accountability during the pandemic. The letter notes that
Boards of Health across the province are continuing to meet and
engage with their health units and stakeholders as the public health
system fights COVID-19.   
Read the letter to the Premier on boards of health's role  

At its meeting in April, the alPHa Board of Directors met with Dr.
David Williams, Chief Medical Officer of Health, and Dr. David
McKeown who gave an update on pandemic-related issues. The
Board is currently considering public health approaches to the
reopening of Ontario and the lifting of current pandemic measures,
while continuing to protect communities' health and preserving
system capacity. On behalf of the public health system, alPHa will
continue to provide leadership, input and feedback to the province. 
Visit the Ministry of Health's page on guidance for the health sector 
View the Ministry's website on the status of Ontario COVID-19 cases
Go to Public Health Ontario's COVID-19 website
Visit the Public Health Agency of Canada's COVID-19 website 

alPHa's Twitter: @PHAgencies

With almost 1,000 followers, alPHa' Twitter feed, @PHAgencies, is
your trusted source of the latest public health news and information.
Connect with other health units, the public health community and the
general public to get quick access to news, advice, and share ideas.
Join the community and follow us here. alPHa also has a LinkedIn
page that members are encouraged to follow.

Public Health News Roundup

Province cancels remainder of school year - 2020/05/19

Government of Ontario extends all emergency orders until May 29 -
2020/05/19

Province announces independent commission into long-term care
beginning in September - 2020/05/19

OMA releases paper on public health measures needed before
reopening province - 2020/05/15

Ontario allows additional seasonal, retail and household businesses,
health and community providers to reopen - 2020/05/14

Canada and Ontario support farm workers with $2.25M in funding -
2020/05/14

Minister Elliott reports on inflammatory illness in children with
COVID-19 - 2020/05/13

Province initiates voluntary redeployment of education sector workers

Page 50 of 52

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fcdn.ymaws.com-252Fwww.alphaweb.org-252Fresource-252Fcollection-252FC9E48A93-2D5DC0-2D4EAE-2D9108-2D14082B79FC3F-252FalPHa-5FLetter-5F-5FBOH-5FGovernance-5FRole-5F150520.pdf_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_n-2DSKoBgKmaxYvmU6hl3t7IA-2DLhQ-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=DxHX2YhzA9UR10NIzybsNgqLZRMfr0dZhzqdCuQk0hg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_http-3A-252F-252Fwww.health.gov.on.ca-252Fen-252Fpro-252Fprograms-252Fpublichealth-252Fcoronavirus-252F2019-5Fguidance.aspx_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_rzcUXwkxrTd0CJiUaDSHTrf3qjE-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=O_w6t-lgz9so1txFJF8mrEH0nSKHgCPJ02lxyZBNjX0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.ontario.ca-252Fpage-252F2019-2Dnovel-2Dcoronavirus-253F-5Fga-3D2.178115365.1614363902.1583935912-2D1448909452.1583935912_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_9LI-2DCGCdqjOcKREtOQEIQb0bHWo-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=qHVgo2iwA4ZPMzeZ2Q8D-Np_MYUya5BN0vmSRtXgipE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.publichealthontario.ca-252Fen-252Fdiseases-2Dand-2Dconditions-252Finfectious-2Ddiseases-252Frespiratory-2Ddiseases-252Fnovel-2Dcoronavirus_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_auBXVvewN9HlEdUUObL2VaNDXq8-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=DAtGpMzCLVlKWsn7WW__inHEVlat4T9eqg3iS0wpS3E&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.canada.ca-252Fen-252Fpublic-2Dhealth-252Fservices-252Fdiseases-252F2019-2Dnovel-2Dcoronavirus-2Dinfection.html_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_PQqSCnu-2D4O9sVMkKNGZUKkV6VGU-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=cnYzja9HzrzaNJ8MF7ymZrYPnKVXTd29vcrY6rbIQKk&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Ftwitter.com-252FPHAgencies_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_Sl0qNWZtLWuKFZOQHjFCv4VKXXw-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=sYAUCM0yVbx1kULZPI8Fz-0c1VXRMut6fElIi86_W7s&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Ftwitter.com-252FPHAgencies_2_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_NVDMTVFk92Uk3UA7P4V6gdHmxmg-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=3rZ331DswGweNKdHmRUhvTp8tThR9jcww-kKVA05eEI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.linkedin.com-252Fcompany-252Fassociation-2Dof-2Dlocal-2Dpublic-2Dhealth-2Dagencies_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_DfagNgEHSiwAYGwDVk54zu6ycGs-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=EcJ1gG9k9tq9Il1B4qGSc3qYcfQSoeq2J2WMrxS2RXo&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fhealth-2Dand-2Dsafety-2Dtop-2Dpriority-2Das-2Dschools-2Dremain-2Dclosed.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_qYq19LJirEUfBQCx0aiFlUYW1e8-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=OJE0CPHOwurzUJfCXU7gQ2dqlZxn1qiaHvCX6jo5Xcg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dextends-2Demergency-2Dorders-2Dto-2Dkeep-2Dpeople-2Dsafe.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_lCs-2DyTJ893SH68C71wdfdPidyKQ-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=W16SeF_jSL5BnjmMDVHrD4nUoA-LxWt00ksdpizzw3U&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fmltc-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dannounces-2Dindependent-2Dcommission-2Dinto-2Dlong-2Dterm-2Dcare.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_1mmSgs-5FLCCan06UCz-2DrtR7BEKZ4-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=BumnCIy2wyH_dDcPGC1K-ITeZC3PZQYHUiOPoihWgvw&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fmltc-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dannounces-2Dindependent-2Dcommission-2Dinto-2Dlong-2Dterm-2Dcare.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_1mmSgs-5FLCCan06UCz-2DrtR7BEKZ4-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=BumnCIy2wyH_dDcPGC1K-ITeZC3PZQYHUiOPoihWgvw&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.newswire.ca-252Fnews-2Dreleases-252Foma-2Durges-2Dincreased-2Dpublic-2Dhealth-2Dmeasures-2Dto-2Davert-2Dcovid-2D19-2Dsurge-2Das-2Dprovince-2Demerges-2Dfrom-2Dlockdown-2D875002376.html_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_Bsi03QUlxhxmXjisq2i-5FXpWM3xQ-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=TMAkWsGbN5ysCa4YGiG2q0Mn6GaEu6FdwHtmYF6s3BY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.newswire.ca-252Fnews-2Dreleases-252Foma-2Durges-2Dincreased-2Dpublic-2Dhealth-2Dmeasures-2Dto-2Davert-2Dcovid-2D19-2Dsurge-2Das-2Dprovince-2Demerges-2Dfrom-2Dlockdown-2D875002376.html_2_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_D34JISMm4yZSK1y6ruFK5gjncZU-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=SwWl_iA42aX3p3IiVmSTONyGvnavp6U6DVXZEqyULXQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dannounces-2Dadditional-2Dworkplaces-2Dthat-2Dcan-2Dreopen.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_UFG4VK7H5ZrbfyGNI5PZEEYKbdI-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=dUIPcaqJWWT9lrxr5BslkVh_jF6ccLRYvRnuEQ6y5es&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dannounces-2Dadditional-2Dworkplaces-2Dthat-2Dcan-2Dreopen.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_UFG4VK7H5ZrbfyGNI5PZEEYKbdI-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=dUIPcaqJWWT9lrxr5BslkVh_jF6ccLRYvRnuEQ6y5es&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fomafra-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fcanada-2Dand-2Dontario-2Dtake-2Dsteps-2Dto-2Dfurther-2Dprotect-2Dfarm-2Dworkers.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_jb-2DvDLXg1q2WlLSCmOVAnebpKnQ-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=XTrU8zL0aEYD1UeDqshCUaOEQPF3UOqq7oVHrMMa1MQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fmohltc-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fprotecting-2Dontarios-2Dchildren-2Dwith-2Dcovid-2D19.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_XH1V-5FY9wmbwci386SN424JEYx8A-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=qYsSvj92jyQBo6bTUkz3n9ZAlnwwtnYghpjkjY0IgiA&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fmohltc-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fprotecting-2Dontarios-2Dchildren-2Dwith-2Dcovid-2D19.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_XH1V-5FY9wmbwci386SN424JEYx8A-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=qYsSvj92jyQBo6bTUkz3n9ZAlnwwtnYghpjkjY0IgiA&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fvoluntary-2Dredeployment-2Dof-2Deducation-2Dworkers-2Dto-2Dfill-2Dstaffing-2Dshortages.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_elOcJrfl8wnj-5FNlO6WVhmriNkUs-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=_L4Ku-dksugem37-iaMNO6PdeodQoZMFdooCDOBdrhI&e=


to congregate care settings - 2020/05/13 

Health Canada authorizes first COVID-19 serological test for use in
Canada - 2020/05/12

Ontario extends state of emergency until June 2 and passes COVID-
19 Response and Reforms to Modernize Ontario Act, 2020 -
2020/05/12

ICES releases up-to-date COVID-19 testing dashboards to public -
2020/05/11

Smoke-Free Ontario Act, 2017 regulatory changes to O. Reg 268/18
to come into effect July 1, 2020 - 2020/05/11

Ontario retail stores open for curbside pickup and delivery -
2020/05/11

FAO forecasts record $41B provincial deficit in 2020-21 - 2020/05/11

Province gives update on restarting economy - 2020/05/08

Provincial government releases plans to resume scheduled surgeries
- 2020/05/07

Ontario eases restrictions on retail outlets and essential construction
- 2020/05/06

Province expands virtual mental health services - 2020/05/05

Ontario increases daily lab testing and contact tracing capacity -
2020/05/04

Province issues new temporary order to increase flexibility for
operational resourcing and frontline staffing - 2020/05/01

Ontario allows garden centres, car washes, some essential
construction projects to re-open on May 4 - 2020/05/01

Province makes more frontline workers eligible for emergency
childcare - 2020/04/29

Ontario releases A Framework for Reopening our Province -
2020/04/27

Provincial government provides frontline staff with pandemic pay -
2020/04/25

Ontario parks to remain closed until May 31 - 2020/04/25

Province allows redeployment of staff to long-term care homes and
services for deafblind community - 2020/04/25

Ontario unveils COVID-19 Action Plan for Vulnerable People -
2020/04/23

Premier introduces more testing, screening and surveillance for long-
term care homes - 2020/04/22

Page 51 of 52

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fvoluntary-2Dredeployment-2Dof-2Deducation-2Dworkers-2Dto-2Dfill-2Dstaffing-2Dshortages.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_elOcJrfl8wnj-5FNlO6WVhmriNkUs-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=_L4Ku-dksugem37-iaMNO6PdeodQoZMFdooCDOBdrhI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.canada.ca-252Fen-252Fhealth-2Dcanada-252Fnews-252F2020-252F05-252Fstatement-2Dfrom-2Dhealth-2Dcanada-2Don-2Dcovid-2D19-2Dserological-2Dtests.html_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_BygeL3ocPfrWeXhGhZIOnz-5F0HlI-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=sHPy0V76XMp9byBz-tRcUahfGOZuXlzdxIwfdEET0cM&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.canada.ca-252Fen-252Fhealth-2Dcanada-252Fnews-252F2020-252F05-252Fstatement-2Dfrom-2Dhealth-2Dcanada-2Don-2Dcovid-2D19-2Dserological-2Dtests.html_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_BygeL3ocPfrWeXhGhZIOnz-5F0HlI-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=sHPy0V76XMp9byBz-tRcUahfGOZuXlzdxIwfdEET0cM&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fdeclaration-2Dof-2Demergency-2Dextended-2Dwhile-2Dontario-2Dgradually-2Dreopens-2Dthe-2Deconomy.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_yF37WOveAe4U4F-5FtSCRJcefiy70-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=kZtk4ZYi5Hd4BpKnp_Mlk3eQoBbhN-EKTOAgRGq897M&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.ola.org-252Fen-252Flegislative-2Dbusiness-252Fbills-252Fparliament-2D42-252Fsession-2D1-252Fbill-2D190_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_JiGeM4CAYo-2DllIuM87HqE-2D3Jx8Y-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=DagQtBinTthWG54AgrdxtodNfG5wQJ2kvSTAEZgCe_8&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.ola.org-252Fen-252Flegislative-2Dbusiness-252Fbills-252Fparliament-2D42-252Fsession-2D1-252Fbill-2D190_2_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_dpqZ3bUKQ-2Ds-5FfdzSnDVJqRtztUM-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=WpSX1ZeKGJLCcSGvlQYZ_jd2gELfl52guWqsQr2Z6EE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.ola.org-252Fen-252Flegislative-2Dbusiness-252Fbills-252Fparliament-2D42-252Fsession-2D1-252Fbill-2D190_2_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_dpqZ3bUKQ-2Ds-5FfdzSnDVJqRtztUM-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=WpSX1ZeKGJLCcSGvlQYZ_jd2gELfl52guWqsQr2Z6EE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.ices.on.ca-252FNewsroom-252FNews-2DReleases-252F2020-252FICES-2Dreleases-2Dup-2Dto-2Ddate-2DCOVID-2D19-2Dtesting-2Ddashboards-2Dto-2Dthe-2Dpublic_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_31zw5rIwvjS6H6o7-2DxJsL6YhFmY-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=FPSYTcYF8oNyulRIQLtw15AuQ1cfLPkn60TYiP9k4io&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.ontario.ca-252Flaws-252Fregulation-252Fr20197_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_OK3aDzCcs-5F78Pbwd9wPrFPCUPTA-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=n-X8zWkpcKHMMmuCBuhSsm7vId_jZxgJnMTHznl2SDU&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.ontario.ca-252Flaws-252Fregulation-252Fr20197_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_OK3aDzCcs-5F78Pbwd9wPrFPCUPTA-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=n-X8zWkpcKHMMmuCBuhSsm7vId_jZxgJnMTHznl2SDU&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dretail-2Dstores-2Dopen-2Dfor-2Dcurbside-2Dpickup-2Dand-2Ddelivery.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_ceSfJXzmxwbi-2DR1mWlKo5klN2Vw-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=QTaSmR8v7OTqtgdmFodDEMB2_yWAA-3eijjxWfEWxJ0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.fao-2Don.org-252Fen-252FBlog-252FPublications-252FEBO-2DSP2020_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_JH9PkK0GkVINZfSmQSGgejMA-5FTA-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=r2uPIcOgEYyyOQTXW_Bq-Nn2Ri0Eh5FL63eRhn1icoA&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dsupports-2Djob-2Dcreators-2Das-2Dpeople-2Dstart-2Dreturning-2Dto-2Dwork.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_q1ewQ7e2D99g6RTI-2De1Hs2Fh1kg-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=r_oWy6QQDXxYnTXoYGdeMooFfuhTB3QuSSf0y13ftQE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dreleases-2Dplan-2Dto-2Dresume-2Dscheduled-2Dsurgeries-2Dand-2Dprocedures.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_dW1AuQ50dB-2DA32iOS1laZtLcH0Y-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=gLz9b8JejGlbGpTDXikZuBCC8H7dR_lZbvocd-MeGUg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dfurther-2Deases-2Drestrictions-2Don-2Dretail-2Dstores-2Dand-2Dessential-2Dconstruction-2Dduring-2Dcovid-2D19.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_9B2zT23Z3VYImev0iutV9AiLSps-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=XMQUM9VLVd_lsQk17dGD30eZb33MnmjENXemNnrp-SI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dexpands-2Dvirtual-2Dmental-2Dhealth-2Dservices-2Dduring-2Dcovid-2D19.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_x3IgUdy98vL4vjOGkXNpGmjjeHc-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=euW9d48S3yUglBuC6dtUXAD215hncY7OdwpPCYoMmXs&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dsignificantly-2Dincreases-2Ddaily-2Dlab-2Dtesting.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_ACmr591Q6t0hbc6RDLVEStj0lQ0-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=s4Hg1nj6N8_s9GYVK-Kuq5g5jGeK1el8QnZ1ZRby4T8&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dtakes-2Dadditional-2Dsteps-2Dto-2Dimprove-2Dhealth-2Dcare-2Dflexibility-2Dduring-2Dcovid-2D19-2Doutbreak.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_yTmqKlpsQsuMaKc46zFgP-2D7Kfpw-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=_YSIgmbjSZHVPyI6ZiMEBIBJJLQXkG5ZUgMEpawBBIQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fontario-2Dtakes-2Dadditional-2Dsteps-2Dto-2Dimprove-2Dhealth-2Dcare-2Dflexibility-2Dduring-2Dcovid-2D19-2Doutbreak.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_yTmqKlpsQsuMaKc46zFgP-2D7Kfpw-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=_YSIgmbjSZHVPyI6ZiMEBIBJJLQXkG5ZUgMEpawBBIQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fcertain-2Dbusinesses-2Dallowed-2Dto-2Dreopen-2Dunder-2Dstrict-2Dsafety-2Dguidelines.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_OFulV3iS0QxNJgttGHeucoE6qEI-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=cWCp3Qa8D_H8zvVf92WNvIA4LxrCSg4lPS8uQJ2Due4&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F05-252Fcertain-2Dbusinesses-2Dallowed-2Dto-2Dreopen-2Dunder-2Dstrict-2Dsafety-2Dguidelines.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_OFulV3iS0QxNJgttGHeucoE6qEI-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=cWCp3Qa8D_H8zvVf92WNvIA4LxrCSg4lPS8uQJ2Due4&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F04-252Fmore-2Dfrontline-2Dworkers-2Deligible-2Dfor-2Demergency-2Dchild-2Dcare.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_bGh0peqzKEzl41sCfjkK8M1w7gA-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=8yx93Q30hpWLfdctWKlkIsv-Zv_QLoftZ0uvJTBfIj0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F04-252Fmore-2Dfrontline-2Dworkers-2Deligible-2Dfor-2Demergency-2Dchild-2Dcare.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_bGh0peqzKEzl41sCfjkK8M1w7gA-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=8yx93Q30hpWLfdctWKlkIsv-Zv_QLoftZ0uvJTBfIj0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F04-252Fontario-2Dunveils-2Dguiding-2Dprinciples-2Dto-2Dreopen-2Dthe-2Dprovince.html_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_prUb0-5F2VAVELOGl4GRV0mvDdYFA-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=OUopp4UMPqZEqlz-J-wIVgWgfrUqtEnaBZkj6vjSb0A&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F04-252Fontario-2Dsupporting-2Dfrontline-2Dheroes-2Dof-2Dcovid-2D19-2Dwith-2Dpandemic-2Dpay.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_HGMuPMo10KnoaN2QmLmTYzEuAFk-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=tyGg8sO-lIPZgwyb9XNvRDYNHaHCkC7BF_vqwwIbFl4&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fene-252Fen-252F2020-252F04-252Fontario-2Dparks-2Dto-2Dremain-2Dclosed-2Duntil-2Dmay-2D31-2D2020.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_Au3lImVXdrc3KuaBbX2Xbp-5FUOxE-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=G4eG9Q_vqDRCjoM6-50DQ2xHjHx35MFioEJhmosk_OU&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F04-252Fontario-2Dallows-2Dthe-2Dredeployment-2Dof-2Dstaff-2Dto-2Dbetter-2Dcare-2Dfor-2Dvulnerable-2Dpeople-2Dduring-2Dcovid-2D19.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_CjoJlMi-5Fu4kfNSxZownSg31n-2Dto-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=yb0n7UOtE-Y1csunkCqJ1DwBwnxk4LQOFHb75_7Hkmg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F04-252Fontario-2Dallows-2Dthe-2Dredeployment-2Dof-2Dstaff-2Dto-2Dbetter-2Dcare-2Dfor-2Dvulnerable-2Dpeople-2Dduring-2Dcovid-2D19.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_CjoJlMi-5Fu4kfNSxZownSg31n-2Dto-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=yb0n7UOtE-Y1csunkCqJ1DwBwnxk4LQOFHb75_7Hkmg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F04-252Fontario-2Ddelivers-2Daction-2Dplan-2Dto-2Dincrease-2Dprotection-2Dfor-2Dvulnerable-2Dpeople-2Dand-2Dthose-2Dwho-2Dcare-2Dfor-2Dthe.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_NxMzi86-5FzsbvwBBE594R-2DNgJbTg-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=nZFUJMjRYBGQeLTV5mTc_s6pnynT03okGMRlKR4EZUI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F04-252Fontario-2Dtakes-2Dimmediate-2Dsteps-2Dto-2Dfurther-2Dprotect-2Dlong-2Dterm-2Dcare-2Dresidents-2Dand-2Dstaff-2Dduring-2Dcovid-2D19.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_dq6ecJVpX4atTNgekn-5F-2Dx5AnAL4-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=AopXQXSl30jOreSGvAVbgaB3-DbQzlI2-rnkiRPvwlI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fnews.ontario.ca-252Fopo-252Fen-252F2020-252F04-252Fontario-2Dtakes-2Dimmediate-2Dsteps-2Dto-2Dfurther-2Dprotect-2Dlong-2Dterm-2Dcare-2Dresidents-2Dand-2Dstaff-2Dduring-2Dcovid-2D19.html-253Futm-5Fsource-3Dondemand-2526utm-5Fmedium-3Demail-2526utm-5Fcampaign-3Dp_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_dq6ecJVpX4atTNgekn-5F-2Dx5AnAL4-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=AopXQXSl30jOreSGvAVbgaB3-DbQzlI2-rnkiRPvwlI&e=


Upcoming Events - Mark your calendars!

***POSTPONED***  June 2020 Annual General Meeting &
Conference - Date and time to be determined. Please visit the
conference page for updates.

This email was sent to susan@alphaweb.org from the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (info@alphaweb.org). 
To stop receiving email from us, please UNSUBSCRIBE by visiting:

http://www.alphaweb.org/members/EmailOptPreferences.aspx?
id=14503517&e=susan@alphaweb.org&h=54d6602895f4462952cf9b041a6a655178eb54f7

Please note that if you unsubscribe, you will no longer receive notices, important announcements, and correspondence from
alPHa. 

 

Page 52 of 52

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_https-3A-252F-252Fwww.alphaweb.org-252Fevents-252FEventDetails.aspx-253Fid-3D1263784-2526group-3D_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_ZlF2R490QHmI6DrshT3v94TUwxA-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=ygUJmOEjFwj_-7yda8UYt1op_Lg5QTiHmP7hN8Bxc_Q&e=
mailto:susan@alphaweb.org
mailto:info@alphaweb.org
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_http-3A-252F-252Fwww.alphaweb.org-252Fmembers-252FEmailOptPreferences.aspx-253Fid-3D14503517-2526e-3Dsusan-40alphaweb.org-2526h-3D54d6602895f4462952cf9b041a6a655178eb54f7_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_5amGjYpTWSCE70aVnS5gEGILuLQ-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=FOkayxWOvwHuw1ejDhlTloigTAjhGnBKqg9U7LCPNMI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__458rl1jp.r.us-2Deast-2D1.awstrack.me_L0_http-3A-252F-252Fwww.alphaweb.org-252Fmembers-252FEmailOptPreferences.aspx-253Fid-3D14503517-2526e-3Dsusan-40alphaweb.org-2526h-3D54d6602895f4462952cf9b041a6a655178eb54f7_1_0100017232d8e806-2Dd6919eb6-2Defcb-2D4552-2Da779-2Df494618ccb0f-2D000000_5amGjYpTWSCE70aVnS5gEGILuLQ-3D162&d=DwMGaQ&c=JZUmuHfvZaOkNOGiUpQbGyGsM8Jf9oFbjpAib-DiM1Q&r=LYOe16tRHiHPN8RTykz3SIOjl7PipNCHfhxCzDgE1c8&m=LotaRccQspoeloDOK5P7FQFC_MdS7t95vDj0vTwDbXI&s=FOkayxWOvwHuw1ejDhlTloigTAjhGnBKqg9U7LCPNMI&e=

	Coverpage
	Agenda
	Call to Order
	Declaration of Conflict of Interest

	Adoption of Agenda
	May 27, 2020 Board of Health Agenda

	Adoption of Minutes
	April 22, 2020 Board of Health Meeting Minutes

	Delegation/Presentations
	Business Arising
	Reports to Board
	Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Report
	Report of MOH CEO - May 2020

	Finance and Audit 
	Financial Statements for the period ending March 31, 2020

	Governance 
	Governance Meeting Chair Report - May 2020
	02-05-088 - Stakeholder Communication
	02-05-001 - Board of Directors
	02-05-010 - Board Minutes - Posting - Circulation
	02-05-030 - Board Member Code of Conduct

	New Business
	Correspondence
	Letter to the Minister of Health from Peterborough Public Health regarding Provincial Leadership in the Monitoring of Food Affordability and Food Insecurity dated April 30, 2020.
	Letter to the Minister of Children, Communicty and Community and Social Services regarding Consultation for a new Ontario Poverty Reduction Strategy, dated April 30, 2020.
	Letter to the Chief Medical Officer of Health from the Corporation of the Township of St. Joseph regarding Transparency of Algoma Public Health dated May 1, 2020
	Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, Deputy Prime Minister, Minister of Finance regarding Basic Income for Income Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond, dated May 20, 2020.

	Items for Information
	alPHa Information Break 

	Addendum
	In-Camera
	Open Meeting
	Resolutions Resulting From In Committees
	Announcements
	Next Board of Health Meeting 

	Adjournment

